






 
 

                                                                    MINUTES 
 

                                                               WORKSESSION  
                                                                        and                                                                          

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL 
CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS 

Pat Bryson Municipal Hall 
201 North Brushy Street ~ Leander, Texas 

Thursday ~ November 19, 2015 at 6:00 PM  
 

  
  
 
 

WORKSESSION: 
1.   Discussion on Bliss Senior Living 
       Mayor Fielder opened the work session at 6:00 pm 
       Council Member Hill was absent.  All others present 
        Mayor Fielder adjourned the Worksession at 6:50 pm 
 
REGULAR MEETING: 
1. Open meeting, Invocation, Pledges of Allegiance 

Mayor Fielder opened the meeting at 7:00 pm and welcomed those in attendance 
Council Member Seiler delivered the invocation 
 

2. Roll Call 
All present 
 

3. Staff Comments 
No staff comments  

  4.  Citizen Comments:  Three (3) minutes allowed per speaker  
             Please turn in speaker request form before the meeting begins 
             No citizen comments 

 

 
  5.  Approval of the minutes: November 5, 2015  
 
  6.  Second Reading of an Ordinance granting Austin Wood Recycling certain powers, licenses, privileges  
       and franchise to operate a business to collect and haul brush, tree, and mulch within the city and designated 
       area of the city’s ETJ for the purpose of recycling such materials; to use the streets, avenues, easements,  
       rights-of-way, alleys, highways, sidewalks, and bridges in said city for a period of five (5) years; prescribing  
       certain rights, duties, terms and conditions; providing for the payment to the City of a percentage of gross  
       receipts of grantee from its operations; providing for acceptance; and providing for certain related matters 
 
  7.  Second Reading of an Ordinance on Zoning Case 15-TOD-Z-022: amending the SmartCode for 19 acres,  
       more or less, generally located 2,100 feet to the west of the intersection of US Hwy 183 and San Gabriel  
       Parkway on the north side of San Gabriel Parkway from PUD/TOD, Planned Unit Development/Transit  
       Oriented Development to amend the PUD to designate the base zoning district as SFR-3-A, Single Family  
       Rural as permitted by the SmartCode, Leander, Williamson County, Texas 
       Applicant: Hill Country Bible Church 

    Mayor   – Christopher Fielder                  Place 4 – Ron Abruzzese 
    Place 1 – Andrea Navarrette (Mayor Pro Tem)                  Place 5 – Jeff Seiler 
    Place 2 – Michelle Stephenson                                 Place 6 – Troy Hill  
    Place 3 – Shanan Shepherd    City Manager – Kent Cagle 
                                                                              

CONSENT AGENDA: ACTION 

 



 
  8.  Second Reading of an Ordinance on Zoning Case 14-Z-029: amending Ordinance 05-018, the Composite  
        Zoning Ordinance for 53.985 acres, more or less, located at 10744 E. Crystal Falls Parkway from Interim  
        zoning SFR-1-B, Single Family Rural to GC-2-A, General Commercial, Leander, Williamson County, Texas   
        Applicant: Bowman Consulting (W.L. Gabler) on behalf of Premas Global Leander, LLC 
 
  9.  Second Reading of an Ordinance on Zoning Case 15-Z-025: amending Ordinance 05-018, the Composite 
       Zoning Ordinance for 18.598 acres, more or less, located NW of the intersection of RM 1431 & Travisso 
       Parkway from Interim zoning SFR-1-B, Single Family Rural to PUD, Planned Unit Development, Leander,  
       Travis County, Texas 
       Applicant: Nancy Stroder on behalf of Travisso, LTD (Taylor Morrison of Texas is the Managing partner). 
 
 10.  Receive Quarterly Investment Report 
 
 11.  License Agreement for the installation and maintenance landscaping, signage and irrigation located within  
        the City right-of-way within the Hazlewood Subdivision 
 
       Motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Navarrette to approve the consent agenda.  Second by Council  
       Member Abruzzese.  Motion passes, all voting “aye” 
 

 
 
  

12.  Public Hearing on Zoning Case 15-Z-029: Consider a zoning change of two lots, for 0.9596 acres, more 
       or less, located at 1605 and 1607 Tierra Alto from SFU/MH-2-B, Single Family Urban/Manufactured Home  
       to TF-2-B, Two-Family, Leander, Williamson County, Texas 
       Applicant: Jose Raul Reyes 
       Tom Yantis, Asst. City Manager explained 
 
       Action on Zoning Case 15-Z-029: amending Ordinance 05-018, the Composite Zoning Ordinance for  
       0.9596 acres, more or less, located at 1605 and 1607 Tierra Alto from SFU/MH-2-B, Single Family  
       Urban/Manufactured Home to TF-2-B, Two-Family, Leander, Williamson County, Texas 
 
       Motion made by Council Member Abruzzese to approve.  Second by Council Member Stephenson. 
       Motion passes, all voting “aye” 
 

 
 

          
     13.  Consider Amendment No. 3 to Task Order HDR-2 with HDR Engineering, Inc., for professional services  
            for Improvements of Old 2243 West from U.S. Hwy 183 to Lakeline Boulevard 
            Wayne Watts, City Engineer explained 

      Motion made by Council Member Stephenson  to approve.  Second by Council Member Shepherd. 
       Motion passes, all voting “aye” 

 
     14.  Consider Award of Right-of-Way (ROW) Mowing Contract 
            Pat Womack, Director of Public Works explained 

       Motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Navarrette to approve.  Second by Council Member Seiler. 
       Motion passes, all voting “aye”   

 
     15.  Water Supply Update 
            Pat Womack, Director of Public Works gave the update 
 
            No action taken 

        
      

REGULAR AGENDA 

PUBLIC HEARING: ACTION 

 



 
 
 
16.  Discussion and possible action on priority annexation areas for fiscal year 2015-16 
       Tom Yantis, Asst. City Manager explained 
 
       Motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Navarrette to direct staff to commence annexations as presented.   
       Second by Council Member Shepherd. Motion passes, all voting “aye” 
   
 
17.  Old Town Neighborhood Empowerment Zone and Incentive Program 
        Mark Willis, Economic Development Director explained 
 

a) A Resolution establishing the Old Town Neighborhood Empowerment Zone 
b) An Ordinance establishing the Old Town Development Incentives Program and amending the 

2015/2016 Budget to Provide Funding for the Program 
 
Motion made by Council Member Fielder to approve the Resolution and Ordinance.  Second by 
Council Member Seiler.  Motion passes, all voting “aye” 
 

18.  Discuss proposed amendments to the Composite Zoning Ordinance, Subdivision Ordinance, and Sign  
       Ordinance 

            Tom Yantis, Asst. City Manager explained              
 
     19.  Consider reappointments to the following Boards/Commissions: 

• Ethics Commission 
• Parks & Recreation Advisory Board 
• Library Foundation Board 

 
Motion made by Council Member Navarrette to reappoint the members as listed in the 
backup documents.  Second by Council Member Abruzzese. Motion passes, all voting 
“aye” 
 
The following members were reappointed: 
Ethics Commission: Steve Kuwitzky, Gerald Perez, Vic Villarreal, James Smit, Steve 
Kovacs and Richard Shirley 
Parks & Recreation Advisory Board: Jayne Serna and Marcia Back 
Library Foundation Board: Gary Anderson, Julie Kimball, Melissa Durham and Diane Hess 
 

20.  Council Members Closing Statements 
       Council Members gave their closing statements 
 
 

 
 
        

21.  Convene into executive session pursuant to Section 551.071, Texas Government Code, and Section 1.05,  
       Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct to consult with legal counsel regarding: 
 

1) Legal issues related to the City's boundaries and the future growth of the City 
2) Cause No. 15-0088-C277, Premas Global Leander I v. City of Leander, et al., In the 277th Judicial 

District Court of Williamson County, Texas 
 
 
 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 



             
               Council convened into executive session at 8:07 pm 
               Council reconvened into open session at 8:25 pm 
 
 
 
 
22.  Reconvene into open session to take action as deemed appropriate in the City Council’s discretion regarding: 
 

1) Legal issues related to the City’s boundaries and the future growth of the City 
2) Cause No. 15-0088-C277, Premas Global Leander I v. City of Leander, et al., In the 277th Judicial 
     District Court of Williamson County, Texas 
   No Action taken 
 

23.  Consider action on the Interlocal Cooperation Agreement for Urban Planning, Watershed Protection and the 
Release of Extraterritorial Jurisdiction between Leander and the City of Liberty Hill 

             Motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Navarrette to terminate the Interlocal Cooperation Agreement for  
             Urban Planning, Watershed Protection and the Release of Extraterritorial Jurisdiction between  
             Leander and the City of Liberty Hill and authorize City Manager to give notice of termination. 
             Second by Council Member Stephenson.  Motion passes, all voting “aye” 
 
     24.  Adjournment 
            With there being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 8:26 pm 
 
 
 
 
 
 
     Attest: 
 
 
 
            __________________________________                      __________________________________ 
            Christopher Fielder, Mayor               Debbie Haile, TRMC, City Secretary 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



AGENDA ITEM # 6 
 

 

 
Executive Summary 

 
December 03, 2015 

 
 
Agenda Subject: Zoning Case 15-Z-029:  Consider action on the rezoning of two 

lots, for 0.9596 acres more or less, located at 1605 and 1607 Tierra 
Alto, WCAD Parcels R035590 and R035591. Currently, the 
property is zoned SFU/MH-2-B (Single-Family Urban / 
Manufactured Home) and the applicant is proposing to zone the 
property TF-2-B (Two-Family), Leander, Williamson, County, 
Texas.  

 
Background: This request is the final step in the rezoning process.   
 
Origination: Applicant: Jose Raul Reyes  
 
Financial  
Consideration: None 
 
Recommendation: See Planning Analysis.  The Planning & Zoning Commission 

unanimously recommended approval of the TF-2-B (Two-Family) 
zoning district at the November 12, 2015 meeting.  The City 
Council unanimously approval of the Planning & Zoning 
Commission recommendation at the November 19, 2015 meeting. 

 
Attachments: 1.   Planning Analysis 
 2.   Current Zoning Map 
 3. Proposed Zoning Map 
 4.   Aerial Map 
 5. Location Map 
 6. Notification Map  
 7. Letter of Intent  
 8. Ordinance  
 
Prepared By:   Tom Yantis, AICP 
 Assistant City Manager 11/23/2015 
 



Attachment # 1                 

 
P L A N N I N G A N A L Y S I S  

 
ZONING CASE 15-Z-029 

1605 AND 1607 TIERRA ALTO 
 

 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Owner: Jose Reyes 
 
Current Zoning: SFU/MH-2-B (Single Family Urban / Manufactured Home) 
    
Proposed Zoning: TF-2-B (Two Family) 
  
Size and Location: The property is located at 1605 and 1607 Tierra Alto Street and includes 

approximately 0.9596 acres. 
 
Staff Contact:   Martin Siwek, AICP, GISP   
 Planner      
   
 

ABUTTING ZONING AND LAND USE: 
 
The table below lists the abutting zoning and land uses. 
 

 ZONING LAND USE 

NORTH SFU/MH-2-B Developed Manufactured Home 

EAST LO-1-B/GC-3C Developed Manufactured Home / Vacant 

SOUTH GC-3-C Developed Daycare 

WEST MF-2-B Developed Manufactured Home 
        

 
  

1 
 



Attachment # 1                 

COMPOSITE ZONING ORDINANCE INTENT STATEMENTS 
USE COMPONENT:   

TF – TWO-FAMILY:   
Features:  9,000 sq. ft. lot min.; 1,200 sq. ft. for s.f. home, 900 sq. ft. per unit for 2 - family. 
Intent:  Development of two-family dwelling structures on intermediate sized lots and for other 

uses that are compatible and complimentary to intermediate sized lots and two-family 
dwellings. Such components are generally intended to provide an orderly transition and serve 
as a buffer between larger lot neighborhoods and more intensive uses and to create more 
variety in housing opportunities and in the fabric of the neighborhoods.  The goal is to avoid 
more than ten acres of contiguous land having a two-family component. This component 
should include or be located within six hundred feet of parkland or other recreational open 
space.  To avoid street congestion due to additional on-street parking, access to lots shall be 
provided by a street with a ROW of fifty-six (56) feet or greater and a pavement width of 
thirty-six (36) feet or greater unless lots average at least one hundred feet in width or unless 
garage access is from an alley. 

 
SITE COMPONENT:   

TYPE 2:   
Features:  Accessory buildings greater of 10% of primary building or 120 sq. ft.; accessory 

dwellings for SFR, SFE and SFS; drive-thru service lanes; uses not to exceed 40,000 sq. ft.; 
multi-family provides at least 35% of units with an enclosed garage parking space. 

Intent:   
(1) The Type 2 site component may be utilized with non-residential developments that are adjacent to 

a residential district or other more restrictive district to help reduce potential negative impacts to 
the more restrictive district and to provide for an orderly transition of development intensity.   

(2) The Type 2 site component is intended to be utilized for residential development not meeting the 
intent of a Type 1 site component and not requiring the additional accessory structure or accessory 
dwelling privileges of the Type 3 site component. 

(3) This component is intended to be utilized with the majority of LO and LC use components except 
those that meet the intent of the Type 1 or Type 3 site component or with any use requiring drive-
through service lanes. 

(4) This component is generally not intended to be utilized with HC and HI use components except 
where such component is adjacent to, and not adequately buffered from, residential districts or 
other more restricted districts, and except as requested by the land owner. 

 
ARCHITECTURAL COMPONENT:   

TYPE B:   
Features:  85% masonry 1st floor, 50% all stories; 4 or more architectural features. 
Intent:   
(1) The Type B architectural component is intended to be utilized for the majority of residential 

development except that which is intended as a Type A architectural component.   
(2) Combined with appropriate use and site components, this component is intended to help provide 

for harmonious land use transitions.   
(3) This component may be utilized to raise the building standards and help ensure compatibility for 

non-residential uses adjacent to property that is more restricted.   

2 
 



Attachment # 1                 

(4) This component is intended for the majority of the LO and LC use components except those 
meeting the intent of the Type A or C architectural components. 

 
 
 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN STATEMENTS: 
 
The following Comprehensive Plan statements may be relevant to this case: 
 Plan for continued growth and development that improves the community’s overall 

quality of life and economic viability. 
 Separate, and/or create transitions, or buffer areas between existing, conflicting or 

incompatible land uses. 
 Strive for a fiscal balance of land uses that will create a positive impact upon the City of 

Leander’s budget and overall tax base. 
 

 

ANALYSIS: 
 
The applicant is requesting to zone the property from SFU/MH-2-B (Single Family Urban / 
Manufactured Home) district to TF-2-B (Two-Family) district.  The property is located at 1605 
and 1607 Tierra Alto Street, which is immediately north of a daycare located at the northwest 
corner of the intersection of Tierra Alto Street and Crystal Falls Pkwy.  Immediately east of this 
property is a vacant lot and a developed manufactured home. North and west of this property are 
developed manufactured homes. 
 
The intent statements of the Two Family Use Component from the Composite Zoning Ordinance 
provides for an orderly transition and serve as a buffer between larger lot neighborhoods and 
more intensive uses.  One of the goals is to avoid more than ten acres of contiguous land having 
a TF Use Component. This use component should be located within six hundred (600’) feet of 
parkland or other recreational space.  To avoid street congestion due to additional on-street 
parking, access to lots shall be provided by a street with a ROW of fifty-six (56’) feet or greater 
and a pavement width of thirty-six (36’) feet or greater unless lots average at least one hundred 
feet in width or unless garage access is from an alley. 
 
The requested Type 2 site component is consistent with the neighboring properties, and is the 
standard site component to be paired with the TF Use Component.   
 
The Type B Architectural Component requires at least 85% of the exterior surface area walls to 
be comprised of masonry for the first floor and 50% masonry is required on each additional story 
thereafter. The Architectural Component would require four design features for street facing 
façades.  This component is intended to provide high building standards and ensure compatibility 
between non-residential and residential uses. 
 

3 
 



Attachment # 1                 

This property is located within a Commercial Corridor.  The purpose of this corridor designation 
is to allow for additional commercial development along corridors already devoted to primarily 
commercial and office uses.  The proposed TF Use Component does not comply with the use 
components that are listed as compatible with the Commercial Corridor.  However, the subject 
property does not have frontage on to Crystal Falls Parkway and the proposal is compatible with 
the Mixed Use Corridor designation.  The Mixed Use Corridor provides for a variety of 
residential uses including small lot single-family, townhome, duplexes, and quadpelxes. 
 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends approval of the requested TF-2-B zoning district.  Although the property is 
located within the Commercial Corridor, staff has determined that this zoning request meets the 
intent of the corridor designations.  These corridors were established to provide a mixture of 
commercial land uses and high density residential.  Due to the location of this property in 
reference to Crystal Falls Parkway and the proposed density of the development, staff has 
determined that this zoning district is appropriate and meets the intent of the Mixed Use 
Corridor.  The Type 2 Site Component and Type B Architectural Component are consistent with 
the zoning classification of the other properties throughout this neighborhood and would be 
appropriate and compatible.  The TF-2-B zoning district would meet the majority of the intent 
statements as defined in the Composite Zoning Ordinance.  It would serve as a buffer between 
more intensely used property to the south and west, and would provide additional buffering from 
Crystal Falls Pkwy to the south.  

4 
 



1B

2A

2A

LOS VISTA DR

BONITA VERDE DR

CRYSTAL FALLS PKWY

TIE
RR

A 
AL

TO
 S

T

OLD BAGDAD RD

CA
RT

O 
ST

TY
RO

NE
 DR

SHAMROCK DR

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

± 0 200

Feet

ZONING CASE 15-Z-029

Attachment #2
Current Zoning Map
1605 & 1607 Tierra Alto

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.



LOS VISTA DR

BONITA VERDE DR

CRYSTAL FALLS PKWY

TIE
RR

A 
AL

TO
 S

T

SHAMROCK DR

CA
RT

O 
ST

OLD BAGDAD RD
TY

RONE D
R

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

± 0 200

Feet

ZONING CASE 15-Z-029

Attachment #3
Proposed Zoning
1605 & 1607 Tierra Alto

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits

Proposed 
TF-2-B

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.



LOS VISTA DR

BONITA VERDE DR

CRYSTAL FALLS PKWY

SHAMROCK DR

TIE
RR

A A
LT

O 
ST

OLD BAGDAD RD

CA
RT

O 
ST

TY
RO

NE
 DR

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

Ë0 200
Feet

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits

ZONING CASE 15-Z-029 Attachment #4
Aerial Exhibit - Approximate Boundaries
1605 & 1607 Tierra Alto

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.



2B

2A

1B

1B

2A

2A
2A

S 
W

ES
T 

DR
S BAGDAD RD

SONNY DR

GL
AS

S 
DR

CRYSTAL FALLS PKWY

WIGWAM

COUNTY GLEN

LOS VISTA DR

DU
BL

IN
 D

R
BONITA VERDE DR

PA
RK

WOOD
 DR

IR
EL

AN
D 

DR

TULA TRL

HI
GH

 C
HA

PA
RR

AL
 D

R

SEDONA

LA
UR

EL
 LN

FOOTHILLS

EM
ER

AL
D 

ISL
E D

R

TYRONE DR

HONEYSUCKLE DR

KILLARNEY DR

IRON HORSE

TAMARAC TRL

MA
SO

N 
CR

EE
K 

BL
VD

LIM
ER

IC
K 

LN

SHEILA DR

DEEPWOODS TRL

GR
EE

NIN
G W

AY

LONDONDERRY DR

SHAMROCK DR

SNOW GOOSE

MOON GLOW
 DR ALSATIAN LN

TIE
RR

A 
AL

TO
 S

T

OLD BAGDAD RD

HERNANDOS LOOP

TIP
PE

RA
RY

 D
R

COTTO
N PA

TC
H TRL

DRAKE CV

CALLE ST

NIGHTSHADE LN

OLD QUARRY RD

APPLE ROCK
REDBUD LN

SE
QU

OI
A 

DR

W
OODDUCK TRL

CA
RT

O 
ST

MULEDEER RUN

DARBEY LN

PEREGRINE WAY

LANTANA LN
GR

EY
BA

CK
 D

R

SALVIA CT

SHAWNEE

ROCKROSE CT

CHICKORY CT

SORREL CT

PINEWOOD CV

SUNFLOWER CT

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

± 0 200

Feet

ZONING CASE 15-Z-029

Attachment #5
Location Map
1605 & 1607 Tierra Alto

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits

Community 
Center

Commercial 
Corridor

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.

Mixed Use
Corridor



R468161

R031742 R031746

R438991

R538833

R035604

R035554

R0
35

60
3

R490925

R031771

R0
35

60
5

R102654

R475161

R035515

R035561
R0

35
56

2

R031842

R475
160

R035575
R035582

R0
35

56
0

R0
35

55
8

R0
35

55
9

R0
35

57
6

R0
35

55
6

R0
35

58
1

R0
35

55
7

R035599

R0
35

52
6R035523

R035589 R0
35

52
4

R035590

R0
35

52
5

R0
35

55
2

R035496

R035595 R035495

R0
35

55
1

R0
35

49
0

R4
72

54
2

R3
62

94
1

R035518

R0
35

49
3

R0
35

57
2

R0
35

49
4

R035517

R0
35

58
8

R035600

R035521

R035594

R035522

R0
35

49
1

R035520

R0
35

55
0

R035602 R035498

R035591

R035497
R0

35
56

9

R4
72

54
1

R035592 R0
35

50
2

R0
35

58
5

R0
35

50
0

R035567

R035598

R097505

R0
35

49
9

R035568

R031843

R035597

R035596

R035601

R0
35

57
3

R035519R0
35

57
0

R0
35

50
1

R0
35

58
6

R0
35

58
7

R0
35

57
1

R405795
R0

35
57

4

R097506

R0
35

58
3

R0
35

58
4

R0
83

62
5

R083649 R083650

R0
83

62
4

R0
83

62
3

R097504

R083683

R0
83

62
2R083

627

R083648

R0
83

62
6

R0
83

62
1

R0
83

61
9

R083682 R0
83

698

R0
83

62
0

R083651 R097513

R4
57

56
6

R097515

R0
35

54
9

R468165

R486078

R097521

R097509

R495154

LOS VISTA DR

BONITA VERDE DR

SHAMROCK DR

CRYSTAL FALLS PKWY

TIE
RR

A A
LT

O 
ST

OLD BAGDAD RD

CA
RT

O 
ST

IRE
LA

ND
 D

R

DU
BL

IN
 D

R

±

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

Public Notification Boundary
Subject Property
WCAD
City Limits

0 200

Feet

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.

CITY MAPCITY MAPË

ZONING CASE 15-Z-029

Attachment #6
Notification Map
1605 & 1607 Tierra Alto



msiwek
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT 7



Amending Ordinance 05-018-00 

 
ORDINANCE NO # 

 
ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS, AMENDING THE 
ZONING ORDINANCE BY REZONING TWO LOTS FROM SINGLE-
FAMILY URBAN/MANUFACTURED HOME (SFU/MH-2-B) TO TWO-
FAMILY (TF-2-B); MAKING FINDINGS OF FACT; AND PROVIDING 
FOR RELATED MATTERS.  

 
 Whereas, the owner of the property described herein after (the "Property") has requested 
that the Property be rezoned;  
 
 Whereas, after giving at least ten days written notice to the owners of land within two 
hundred feet of the Property, the Planning & Zoning Commission held a public hearing on the 
proposed rezoning and forwarded its recommendation on the rezoning to the City Council; 
   
 Whereas, after publishing notice of the public hearing at least fifteen days prior to the date 
of such hearing, the City Council at a public hearing has reviewed the request and the circumstances 
of the Property and finds that a substantial change in circumstances of the Property, sufficient to 
warrant a change in the zoning of the Property, has transpired; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF LEANDER, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
Section 1.  Findings.  The foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and correct and are hereby 
adopted by the City Council and made a part hereof for all purposes as findings of fact. 
 
Section 2.  Amendment of Zoning Ordinance.  Ordinance No. 05-018, as amended, the City of 
Leander Composite Zoning Ordinance (the "Zoning Ordinance" or "Code"), is hereby modified and 
amended by rezoning the Property as set forth in Section 3. 
 
Section 3. Applicability. This ordinance applies to the following tract of land, which is herein 
referred to as the “Property.”  That certain parcels of land being legally described as Lots 1 & 2, 
Block 7 of the High Chaparral Subdivision, located at 1605 & 1607 Tierra Alto Street, Williamson 
County, Texas, being more particularly described in Exhibit “A”; identified by Williamson County 
tax identification numbers R035590 and R035591; more particularly described in document 
number 2015077386 recorded in the Williamson County Official Public Records. 
 
Section 4.  Property Rezoned.  The Zoning Ordinance is hereby amended by changing the zoning 
district for the Property from Single-Family Urban/Manufactured Home (SFU/MH-2-B) to Two-
Family (TF-2-B) as shown in Exhibit “A”.  
 
Section 5. Recording Zoning Change. The City Council directs the City Secretary to record this 
zoning classification on the City’s official zoning map with the official notation as prescribed by 
the City’s zoning ordinance. 
 



Amending Ordinance 05-018-00 

Section 6.  Severability.  Should any section or part of this ordinance be held unconstitutional, 
illegal, or invalid, or the application to any person or circumstance for any reasons thereof 
ineffective or inapplicable, such unconstitutionality, illegality, invalidity, or ineffectiveness of such 
section or part shall in no way affect, impair or invalidate the remaining portion or portions thereof; 
but as to such remaining portion or portions, the same shall be and remain in full force and effect 
and to this end the provisions of this ordinance are declared to be severable. 
 
Section 7.  Open Meetings.  That it is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at 
which this ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapt. 551, 
Loc. Gov't. Code. 
 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading this the 19th day of November, 2015. 
 FINALLY PASSED AND APPROVED on this the 3rd day of December, 2015. 
 
 
THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS ATTEST: 
 
 
 
__________________________________ _____________________________ 
Christopher Fielder, Mayor     Debbie Haile, City Secretary 
 



LOS VISTA DR

BONITA VERDE DR

CRYSTAL FALLS PKWY

TIE
RR

A 
AL

TO
 S

T

SHAMROCK DR

CA
RT

O 
ST

OLD BAGDAD RD
TY

RONE D
R

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

± 0 200

Feet

ZONING CASE 15-Z-029

Exhibit A
Ordinance Exhibit
1605 & 1607 Tierra Alto

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits

TF-2-B

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.



AGENDA ITEM # 7 

 
Executive Summary 

December 3, 2015 

 

Agenda Subject:  Re-appoint Dr. Luis Egelsee as a Director to the Williamson County and Cities Health 

District.  

 
Background:  Dr. Luis Egelsee was the original representative for the City of Leander to the Williamson 

County and Cities Health District (WCCHD.  He has served the city well with involvement in the Board of 

Directors and providing information to the City of Leander concerning the  WCCHD Board activities.  items 

governed by this district.    

 

To be qualified as a director, a person must be a citizen of the United States and must have resided at least three 

(3) years in the jurisdiction covered by the District. A director shall not be an elected official or employee of the 

Members (City) or their immediate families, or employees of the District or their immediate families.  Directors 

shall serve without compensation.  The director shall serve a three term.  The Board meets quarterly usually 

during business hours. 

 

Origination:   Bill Gardner, Fire Chief/EMC 

 
Recommendation:     Staff recommends Council re-appoint Dr/ Luis Egelsee as director to the WCCHD. 

 
Attachments:    None 

 
Prepared by:  Bill Gardner    



AGENDA ITEM # 8 

 
 

Executive Summary 

 

December 3, 2015 

 

Council Agenda Subject:  Consider Dedication and Acceptance of Subdivision 
Infrastructure Improvements for Oak Creek Phase 2, Section 3  
 
Background:  The subdivision infrastructure improvements required for Oak Creek Phase 2, 
Section 3 have been installed, inspected, and found to be satisfactorily completed.  All 
documentation required for acceptance of the subdivision has been received, including record 
drawings, statement of substantial completion prepared by a Professional Engineer licensed 
in the State of Texas, copies of all inspection reports and certified test results, electronic files 
of the improvements and final plat, affidavit of all bills paid, and a two-year term 
Maintenance Bond. The Maintenance Bond will commence its two year term upon City 
Council acceptance, as anticipated, on December 3, 2015, which will provide warranty and 
maintenance coverage for the infrastructure improvements through December 3, 2017.  The 
Engineering Department will perform a formal inspection of the improvements 
approximately 30 days prior to the expiration of the Maintenance Bond to assure that any 
defects in materials, workmanship, or maintenance are corrected prior to expiration of the 
bond. 
 
Origination:   Wayne S. Watts, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 
 
Financial Consideration: N/A 
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends City Council’s formal acceptance of the subdivision 
infrastructure improvements for Oak Creek Phase 2, Section 3. 
   
Attachments:  Location Map, Engineer’s Concurrence Letter, ADA Inspection, Maintenance 
Bond, Affidavits of All Bills Paid, and Final Pay Estimates. 
 
Prepared by:  Wayne S. Watts, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 

































AGENDA ITEM # 9 

 
 

Executive Summary 

 

December 3, 2015 

 

Council Agenda Subject:  Consider Dedication and Acceptance of Palmera Ridge Off-Site 
WW Improvements  
 
Background:  The infrastructure improvements required for Off-Site Waste-water 
improvements at Palmera Ridge have been installed, inspected, and found to be satisfactorily 
completed.  All documentation required for acceptance of the subdivision has been received, 
including record drawings, statement of substantial completion prepared by a Professional 
Engineer licensed in the State of Texas, copies of all inspection reports and certified test 
results, electronic files of the improvements and final plat, affidavit of all bills paid, and a 
two-year term Maintenance Bond. The Maintenance Bond will commence its two year term 
upon City Council acceptance, as anticipated, on December 3, 2015, which will provide 
warranty and maintenance coverage for the infrastructure improvements through December 
3, 2017.  The Engineering Department will perform a formal inspection of the Off-Site 
improvements approximately 30 days prior to the expiration of the Maintenance Bond to 
assure that any defects in materials, workmanship, or maintenance are corrected prior to 
expiration of the bond. 
 
Origination:   Wayne S. Watts, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 
 
Financial Consideration: N/A 
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends City Council’s formal acceptance of the Palmera 
Ridge Off-Site WW Improvements 
   
Attachments:  Location Map, Engineer’s Concurrence Letter, ADA Inspection, Maintenance 
Bond, Affidavits of All Bills Paid, and Final Pay Estimates. 
 
Prepared by:  Wayne S. Watts, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 





























AGENDA ITEM # 10 

 
 

Executive Summary 

 

December 3, 2015 

 

Council Agenda Subject:  Consider Dedication and Acceptance of Subdivision 
Infrastructure Improvements for Palmera Ridge Section 1 
 
Background:  The subdivision infrastructure improvements required for Palmera Ridge 
Section 1 have been installed, inspected, and found to be satisfactorily completed.  All 
documentation required for acceptance of the subdivision has been received, including record 
drawings, statement of substantial completion prepared by a Professional Engineer licensed 
in the State of Texas, copies of all inspection reports and certified test results, electronic files 
of the improvements and final plat, affidavit of all bills paid, and a two-year term 
Maintenance Bond. The Maintenance Bond will commence its two year term upon City 
Council acceptance, as anticipated, on December 3, 2015, which will provide warranty and 
maintenance coverage for the infrastructure improvements through December 3, 2017.  The 
Engineering Department will perform a formal inspection of the improvements 
approximately 30 days prior to the expiration of the Maintenance Bond to assure that any 
defects in materials, workmanship, or maintenance are corrected prior to expiration of the 
bond. 
 
Origination:   Wayne S. Watts, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 
 
Financial Consideration: N/A 
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends City Council’s formal acceptance of the subdivision 
infrastructure improvements for Palmera Ridge Section 1. 
   
Attachments:  Location Map, Engineer’s Concurrence Letter, ADA Inspection, Maintenance 
Bond, Affidavits of All Bills Paid, and Final Pay Estimates. 
 
Prepared by:  Wayne S. Watts, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 

































AGENDA ITEM # 11 

 
 

Executive Summary 

 

December 3, 2015 

 

Council Agenda Subject:  Consider Dedication and Acceptance of Subdivision 
Infrastructure Improvements for Palmera Ridge Section 2 
 
Background:  The subdivision infrastructure improvements required for Palmera Ridge 
Section 2 have been installed, inspected, and found to be satisfactorily completed.  All 
documentation required for acceptance of the subdivision has been received, including record 
drawings, statement of substantial completion prepared by a Professional Engineer licensed 
in the State of Texas, copies of all inspection reports and certified test results, electronic files 
of the improvements and final plat, affidavit of all bills paid, and a two-year term 
Maintenance Bond. The Maintenance Bond will commence its two year term upon City 
Council acceptance, as anticipated, on December 3, 2015, which will provide warranty and 
maintenance coverage for the infrastructure improvements through December 3, 2017.  The 
Engineering Department will perform a formal inspection of the improvements 
approximately 30 days prior to the expiration of the Maintenance Bond to assure that any 
defects in materials, workmanship, or maintenance are corrected prior to expiration of the 
bond. 
 
Origination:   Wayne S. Watts, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 
 
Financial Consideration: N/A 
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends City Council’s formal acceptance of the subdivision 
infrastructure improvements for Palmera Ridge Section 2. 
   
Attachments:  Location Map, Engineer’s Concurrence Letter, ADA Inspection, Maintenance 
Bond, Affidavits of All Bills Paid, and Final Pay Estimates. 
 
Prepared by:  Wayne S. Watts, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 





























AGENDA ITEM # 12 

 
 

Executive Summary 
 

December 3, 2015 
 
 
 
 
Subject: Special Permit for an Cancer Fundraiser in Bledsoe Park 
 
Background: The City received a request to waive park closing hours for a special permit for a 
fundraising event sponsored by Austin EMS staff member for a colleague diagnosed with testicular 
cancer. 
 
The fundraiser is a BBQ cook-off/raffle scheduled for Saturday, December 5th in Robin Bledsoe Park.  A 
special permit is required to waive the park’s regular 10 pm closing time to allow the group to begin to set 
up, cook and stay in the park overnight beginning Friday evening, December 4th.    
    
Financial Consideration: None 
  
Recommendation:  Staff respectfully requests City Council approval of the Special Permit to waive 
Bledsoe Park closing hours on December 4th and 5th, 2015 for an Austin EMS fundraiser.   
 
Attachments:   Special Permit Application  
 
Prepared by:  Stephen Bosak, Parks & Recreation Director 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

Special Event Permit Application 
 

 
Applicant/Organization Name: Brandon Taylor 
 
Type of Event: Fundraiser 
 
Name & Contact Information of Responsible Individual:  
Brandon Taylor, Captain 
Field Operations 
Austin/Travis County EMS  
C: 512.299.0207 
Brandon.Taylor@austintexas.gov  
 
Description of Event: 
Austin EMS staff will hold a fundraiser to raise money for the family of a colleague that was diagnosed 
with testicular cancer.  The event will be a BBQ cook-off/raffle on December 5th in Bledsoe Park and a 
special event permit is needed to waive park closing ours so the organizers can set up, cook and stay in 
the park overnight beginning Friday, December 4th. 
   
The event is open to the general public and there will be no admission charge. 
 
City Services Needed:  
Utilities & Services Needed: Electricity, Restrooms & Water provided by the City of Leander 
Sanitation/Litter Pick Up: Applicant    
Security:     Applicant 
Traffic Control:  Applicant 
  
Will alcohol be sold?      No 
 
Will the proposed activity interfere or detract from the general public use of the area?  No 
 
Will the proposed activity adversely impact or affect City, adjacent/nearby property owners?   No   
 
Will the activity cause/create health or safety risks to the public or damage to other property?  No.  
 
Will the event require local or state permits, or violate any federal, state or municipal laws?  No.  
 
What measures will be taken to prevent/minimize adverse impacts or affects?  Austin EMS staff will 
be present to manage the event to prevent/minimize potential adverse impacts or affects. 
 
Proof of Insurance:  Provided by Applicant 

 
Brandon Taylor    December 3, 2015 
Captain, Austin EMS     

mailto:Brandon.Taylor@austintexas.gov


 
 
 
 
From: "Taylor, Brandon" <Brandon.Taylor@austintexas.gov> 
Date: November 24, 2015 at 12:20:23 AM CST 
To: "cfielder@leandertx.gov" <cfielder@leandertx.gov> 
Subject: Austin EMS Paramedic Cancer Fundraiser  
 
Mayor Fielder,  
 
My name is Brandon Taylor and I am a Captain With Austin EMS. I am writing this evening with a heavy 
heart and a request.  One of our fellow paramedics and a good friend of mine has recently been diagnosed 
with testicular Cancer and is currently undergoing chemotherapy. We are holding a benefit cook-off/raffle 
fundraiser for him at Bledsoe park on December 5th.  I spoke with the parks director today who was 
extremely helpful.  I had initially requested that we could arrive Friday night and start cooking early 
Saturday morning.  He informed me that the park hours are from 0500 to 2200 unless otherwise approved 
by city council as it has been approved in the past. The last cook-off we did at this park was for a police 
officer who also had cancer and it was approved for an overnight stay.  It was a great time for us to meet, 
talk, and spend some quality time together.  My request is this:  
 
Could you approve for us to arrive Friday night and stay to gather and prepare our equipment for the 
cookoff on Saturday morning.  We would arrive Friday afternoon and would leave by closing hours on 
Saturday.   
 
Your help is greatly appreciated.  
 
Thank you Mayor.  
 
Sincerely,  
 
Brandon Taylor, Captain 
Field Operations 
Austin/Travis County EMS  
C: 512.299.0207 



AGENDA ITEM # 13 

 
Executive Summary 

December 3, 2015 

 

Agenda Subject:  First public hearing on the proposed annexation of 37.079 acres, more or less, 
of land generally located west of Ronald Reagan Blvd.  and north of the South San Gabriel 
River in Williamson County, Texas. 

  
Background:  The City Council approved the resolution accepting the petition for voluntary 
annexation for the subject tracts at its October 15, 2015 meeting.  The property includes 
approximately 37.079 acres on the west side of Ronald Reagan Blvd just north of the South San 
Gabriel River.  The resolution set the two public hearings for December 3, 2015 and December 
17, 2015.  The first reading of the ordinance is scheduled for January 7, 2016 and the second and 
final reading is scheduled for January 21, 2016.  
 
This is a voluntary annexation. 
     
Origination:  Applicants 
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends conducting the first public hearing. 
 
Attachments:  

1. Annexation schedule 
2. Location maps 
3. Annexation resolution and service plan 
4. Annexation petition 
 

Prepared by:   Tom Yantis, AICP 
 Assistant City Manager 
 
 11/18/2015 

 



SCHEDULE FOR VOLUNTARY ANNEXATION  
TOUNGATE / PALMERA BLUFF +/- 220.30 Acres, VALLEY VISTA AND CR 269 

DATE ACTION/EVENT LEGAL AUTHORITY 
October 15, 2015 
 

COUNCIL BY WRITTEN RESOLUTION Directs 
notification to land owners; and sets two (2) Public 
Hearings December 3, 2015 and December 17 2015; 
Council directs development of service plan for area to be 
annexed.  

Loc. Gov’t Code, §§ 43.063 & 43.065; 
Public Hearings: are on or after the 40th day 
but before 20th day before institution of 
proceedings.  

By November 2, 2015 NOTICE TO property owners & utility providers  Loc. Gov’t Code § 43.062(a) 
November 18, 2015** 
Publish notice of First 
Public Hearing and 
send school district 
notice 
 
December 2, 2015** 
Publish notice of  
Second Public Hearing  

NEWSPAPER NOTICES RE: FIRST AND SECOND 
PUBLIC HEARINGS; (If applicable, certified Notice to 
Railroad). POST NOTICE OF HEARINGS ON CITY’S 
WEBSITE AND MAINTAIN UNTIL HEARINGS 
COMPLETE 
 
SCHOOL DISTRICT NOTICE (notify each school 
district of possible impact w/in the period prescribed for 
publishing the notice of the First Public Hearing.)  

Not less than 10 days nor more than 20 days 
before 1st and 2nd public hearings.  Loc. 
Gov’t Code, §43.063 (c). 
 
 
 
Loc. Gov’t Code § 43.905; send school 
district notice not less than 10 days nor more 
than 20 days before the First Public Hearing. 

Ten days after the date 
the first notice of 
Public Hearing is 
published 

LAST DAY FOR SUBMISSION OF WRITTEN 
PROTEST BY RESIDENTS (10 days after first 
newspaper notice) 

Site hearing required if 10% of adult 
residents of tracts protest within 10 days after 
1st newspaper notice. Loc. Gov’t Code, § 
43.063 (b) 

December 3, 2015* 1st PUBLIC HEARING AND PRESENT SERVICE 
PLAN (Not more than 40 days before the 1st reading of 
ordinance) REGULAR MEETING 

Not less than 20 days nor more than 40 days 
before reading of ordinance.  Loc. Gov’t 
Code, §§ 43.063(a) & 43.065.  

December 17, 2015* 2nd PUBLIC HEARING AND PRESENT SERVICE 
PLAN (At least 20 days before 1st reading of ordinance.) 
REGULAR MEETING 

Not less than 20 days nor more than 40 days 
before reading of ordinance.  Loc. Gov’t 
Code, §§ 43.063(a) & 43.065. 

Institution Date 
January 7, 2016* 

FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE  
REGULAR MEETING 

Date of institution of proceedings.  Not less 
than 20 days from the second public hearing 
nor more than 40 days from the first public 
hearing. 

January 21, 2016; 
Or at a special called 
meeting after the 1st 
First Reading   

SECOND-FINAL READING OF ORDINANCE  
REGULAR MEETING 

Not more than 90 days after 1st reading of 
Ordinance § 43.064. 

Within 30 days of 
Second Reading  

CITY SENDS COPY OF MAP showing boundary 
changes to County Voter Registrar in a format that is 
compatible with mapping format used by registrar 

Elec. Code §42.0615 

Within 60 days of 
Second Reading 

CITY PROVIDES CERTIFIED COPY OF 
ORDINANCE AND MAPS TO:  
 

1. County Clerk 
2. County Appraisal District 
3. County Tax Assessor Collector 
4. 911 Addressing 
5. Sheriff’s Office 
6. City Department Heads 
7. State Comptroller 
8. Franchise Holders 

 

*Dates in BOLD are MANDATORY dates to follow this schedule.  Please advise if deviation. 
**Newspaper notices to paper by 5p.m. the preceding Wednesday. 
 



! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

PALMERA RIDGE

RANCHO SIENNA

2B

2B

RO
NA

LD
 W

 R
EA

GA
N 

BL
VD

BRADLEY RANCH RD

VIA DE SIENNA BLVD

CR 274

SAN MATTEO ST

GROSSETO LN

SANTA MARIA ST

SA
N 

MI
NI

AT
O 

ST

CORTONA LN

ADORNO LN

CORTONA CV

RA
NC

HO
 TR

L

RO
NA

LD
 W

 R
EA

GA
N 

BL
VD

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

Ë 0 200

Feet

ANNEXATION 15-A-004
Valley Vista Annexation

CITY MAPË

Subject Property



RESOLUTION NO.  15-019-00     
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS, ACCEPTING THE 
PETITION FOR ANNEXATION OF 37.079 ACRES, MORE OR LESS, OF 
LAND LOCATED IN WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS; SETTING AN 
ANNEXATION SCHEDULE; PROVIDING FOR OPEN MEETINGS AND 
OTHER RELATED MATTERS. 

 
 WHEREAS, the owner of certain properties located within Williamson County, Texas, has 
petitioned the City of Leander, Texas, (herein the “City”), a home-rule City, for annexation of said 
properties, more particularly described herein (the “subject property”),  into the City limits; 
 
 WHEREAS, the subject property is contiguous and adjacent to the corporate limits of the City 
and the owners have made application for annexation;  
 
 WHEREAS, after review and consideration of such petition for annexation, the City Council 
finds that the subject property is exempt from the City’s annexation plan pursuant to § 43.052 (h)(2) of 
the Local Government Code; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the petitioner has agreed and consented to the annexation of the subject property 
by the City and further agreed to be bound by all acts, ordinances, and all other legal action now in 
force and effect within the corporate limits of the City and all those which may be hereafter adopted;  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF LEANDER, TEXAS, THAT: 
 

Section 1. Findings.  The foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and correct and are 
hereby adopted by the City Council and made a part hereof for all purposes as findings of fact.     
 
  Section 2.  Proceedings.  The petition for annexation of the subject property, including the 
abutting streets, roadways, and rights of way, not previously annexed into the City and the draft services 
plan shown in Exhibit “B”, are hereby accepted:   
 
 All those certain tracts or parcels of land being 37.079 acres, more or less, situated in 

the Henry Garmes Survey, Abstract No. 269, located in Williamson County, Texas, to 
include tracts of land identified by Williamson County Appraisal District Property ID’s: 
R497583 and R473803 and being more particularly shown and described in the Exhibit 
“A” attached hereto and incorporated herein for all purposes.    

 
Two public hearings are set for the dates of December 3, 2015 and December 17, 2015.  Notice 
of such hearings shall be posted and the hearings shall be open to the public to accept public 
comment on the annexation request.  In the event of a conflict between the subject property 
descriptions contained herein, Exhibit “A” shall control.  

  

 

 



 
Section 3. Severability. Should any section or part of this Resolution be held 

unconstitutional, illegal, or invalid, or the application to any person or circumstance thereof 
ineffective or inapplicable, such unconstitutionality, illegality, invalidity, or ineffectiveness of such 
section or part shall in no way affect, impair or invalidate the remaining portion or portions thereof; 
but as to such remaining portion or portions, the same shall be and remain in full force and effect and 
to this end the provisions of this Resolution are declared to be severable. 

 
Section 4.  Open Meetings.  It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at 

which this Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapt. 551, 
Tex. Gov't. Code. 
 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED this the 15th day of October, 2015. 

 
 
ATTEST:      THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS 
 
 
______________________________   ________________________________ 
Debbie Haile, City Secretary    Christopher Fielder, Mayor 

  

  

  

 

 



Exhibit “A”  
 

SUBJECT PROPERTY DESCRIPTION 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

     
 

  

 

 



 

Exhibit “B” 
 

MUNICIPAL SERVICES PLAN 
FOR PROPERTY TO BE 

ANNEXED INTO THE CITY OF LEANDER 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Leander, Texas (the “City”) intends to institute annexation 
proceedings for tracts of land described more fully hereinafter (referred to herein as the “subject 
property”); 
 
 WHEREAS, Section 43.056, Loc. Gov't. Code, requires a service plan be adopted with the 
annexation ordinance;  
 
 WHEREAS, the subject property is not included in the municipal annexation plan and is 
exempt from the requirements thereof; 
 
 WHEREAS, infrastructure provided for herein and that existing are sufficient to service the 
subject property on the same terms and conditions as other similarly situated properties currently within 
the City limits and no capital improvements are required to offer municipal services on the same terms 
and conditions as other similarly situated properties within the City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is found that all statutory requirements have been satisfied and the City is 
authorized by Chapt. 43, Loc. Gov't. Code, to annex the subject property into the City;  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the following services will be provided for the subject property on the 
effective date of annexation: 
 
(1) General Municipal Services.  Pursuant to the requests of the owner and this Plan, the 
following services shall be provided immediately from the effective date of the annexation: 
 
 A. Police protection as follows: 
 
 Routine patrols of areas, radio response to calls for police service and all other police services 

now being offered to the citizens of the City. 
 
 B. Fire protection and Emergency Medical Services as follows: 
 
 Fire protection by the present personnel and equipment of the City fire fighting force and the 

volunteer fire fighting force with the limitations of water available.  Radio response for 
Emergency Medical Services with the present personnel and equipment. 

 

  

 

 



 C. Solid waste collection services as follows: 
 
 Solid waste collection and services as now being offered to the citizens of the City. 
 
 D. Animal control as follows: 
 
 Service by present personnel, equipment and facilities or by contract with a third party, as 

provided within the City. 
 
 E. Maintenance of parks and playgrounds within the City. 
 
 F. Inspection services in conjunction with building permits and routine City code 

enforcement services by present personnel, equipment and facilities. 
 
 G. Maintenance of other City facilities, buildings and service. 
 
 H. Land use regulation as follows: 
 
 On the effective date of annexation, the zoning jurisdiction of the City shall be extended to 

include the annexed area, and the use of all property therein shall be grandfathered; and shall be 
temporarily zoned “SFR-1-B” with the intent to rezone the subject property upon request of the 
landowner or staff.  The Planning & Zoning Commission and the City Council will consider 
rezoning the subject property at future times in response to requests submitted by the 
landowner(s) or authorized city staff.   

 
(2) Scheduled Municipal Services.  Due to the size and vacancy of the subject property, the 
plans and schedule for the development of the subject property, the following municipal services will 
be provided on a schedule and at increasing levels of service as provided in this Plan:  
 
 A. Water service and maintenance of water facilities as follows: 
 
 (i) Inspection of water distribution lines as provided by statutes of the State of Texas. 
 
 (ii) In accordance with the applicable rules and regulations for the provision of water 

service, water service will be provided to the subjects properties, or applicable portions thereof, 
by the utility holding a water certificate of convenience and necessity (“CCN”) for the subject 
properties, or portions thereof as applicable, or absent a water CCN, by the utility in whose 
jurisdiction the subject properties, or portions thereof as applicable, are located, in accordance 
with all the ordinances, regulations, and policies of the City in effect from time to time for the 
extension of water service.  If connected to the City’s water utility system, the subject 
properties’ owner shall construct the internal water lines and pay the costs of line extension and 
construction of such facilities necessary to provide water service to the subject properties as 
required in City ordinances.  Upon acceptance of the water lines within the subject properties 

  

 

 



and any off-site improvements, water service will be provided by the City utility department on 
the same terms, conditions and requirements as are applied to all similarly situated areas and 
customers of the City; subject to all the ordinances, regulations and policies of the City in effect 
from time to time.  The system will be accepted and maintained by the City in accordance with 
its usual acceptance and maintenance policies.  New water line extensions will be installed and 
extended upon request under the same costs and terms as with other similarly situated 
customers of the City.  The ordinances of the City in effect at the time a request for service is 
submitted shall govern the costs and request for service.  The continued use of a water well 
that is in use on the effective date of the annexation and is in compliance with applicable 
rules and regulations shall be permitted and such use may continue until the subject 
properties’ owner requests and is able to connect to the City’s water utility system. 

 
 B. Wastewater service and maintenance of wastewater service as follows: 
 
 (i) Inspection of sewer lines as provided by statutes of the State of Texas. 
 
 (ii) (a) In accordance with the applicable rules and regulations for the provision of 

wastewater service, wastewater service will be provided to the subjects properties, or applicable 
portions thereof, by the utility holding a wastewater CCN for the subject properties, or portions 
thereof as applicable, or absent a wastewater CCN, by the utility in whose jurisdiction the 
subject properties, or portions thereof as applicable, are located, in accordance with all the 
ordinances, regulations, and policies of the City in effect from time to time for the extension of 
wastewater service.  If connected to the City’s wastewater utility system, the subject properties’ 
owner shall construct the internal wastewater lines and pay the costs of line extension and 
construction of facilities necessary to provide wastewater service to the subject properties as 
required in City ordinances.  Upon acceptance of the wastewater lines within the subject 
properties and any off-site improvements, wastewater service will be provided by the City 
utility department on the same terms, conditions and requirements as are applied to all similarly 
situated areas and customers of the City, subject to all the ordinances, regulations and policies 
of the City in effect from time to time.  The wastewater system will be accepted and maintained 
by the City in accordance with its usual policies.  Requests for new wastewater line extensions 
will be installed and extended upon request under the same costs and terms as with other 
similarly situated customers of the City.  The ordinances in effect at the time a request for 
service is submitted shall govern the costs and request for service.  The continued use of a 
septic system that is in use on the effective date of the annexation and is in compliance with 
all applicable rules and regulations shall be permitted and such use may continue until the 
subject property owner requests and is able to connect to the City’s wastewater utility system. 

 
  (b) This paragraph shall apply, in addition to paragraph 2B(ii)(a), in the event the 

City contracts with City of Liberty Hill, Texas to provide wholesale wastewater service to an 
area that includes the subject property (the “Wholesale Wastewater Agreement”). The 
landowners, on behalf of themselves and the landowners’ respective grantees, successors, 
assigns and subsequent purchasers of the subject property, agree to pay three hundred fifty 

  

 

 



dollars ($350.00) per living unit equivalent (the “System Reservation Fee”), as that term is 
defined in the Wholesale Wastewater Agreement, for the purpose of reserving capacity in the 
South San Gabriel Plant, as that term is defined in the Wholesale Wastewater Agreement, at the 
time that the landowner submits a preliminary plat for the subject property, or any portion 
thereof, and acknowledges and agrees that payment of the System Reservation Fee shall be a 
condition of preliminary plat approval.  Further, the landowners, on behalf of themselves and 
the landowners’ respective grantees, successors, assigns, and subsequent purchasers of the 
subject property, agree that each lot, tract, parcel or building site within the subject property that 
will be provided with wastewater service by the City shall pay the Connection Fee set forth in 
the Wholesale Wastewater Agreement.  The Connection Fee shall be payable with respect to a 
lot, tract, parcel, or building site at the time the building permit for each building or structure is 
applied for, or if no building permit is required, then upon the date application is made to the 
City for connection to the City’s wastewater system.  The System Reservation Fee and the 
Connection Fee shall be in addition to any other fee, rates, and charges charged by the City for 
wastewater service to similarly situated customers.  When evaluating the application of City 
policies, rules, and ordinances to similarly situated areas and customers of the City, land and 
customers located within the area served by the City pursuant to the Wholesale Wastewater 
Agreement are similarly situated areas and customers of the City, subject to individual 
development agreements that may be applicable to such land. 

 
 C. Maintenance of streets and rights-of-way as appropriate as follows: 
 

(i) Provide maintenance services on existing public streets within the subject property 
and other streets that are hereafter constructed and finally accepted by the City.  The 
maintenance of the streets and roads will be limited as follows:  

 
  (A) Emergency maintenance of streets, repair of hazardous potholes, measures 

necessary for traffic flow, etc.; and 
 
  (B) Routine maintenance as presently performed by the City. 
 

(ii) The City will maintain existing public streets within the subject property, and 
following installation and acceptance of new roadways by the City as provided by city 
ordinance, including any required traffic signals, traffic signs, street markings, other traffic 
control devices and street lighting, the City will maintain such newly constructed public 
streets, roadways and rights-of-way within the boundaries of the subject property, as follows: 

 
(A) As provided in C(i)(A)&(B) above; 

 
  (B) Reconstruction and resurfacing of streets, installation of drainage facilities, 

construction of curbs, gutters and other such major improvements as the need 
therefore is determined by the governing body under City policies;  

 

  

 

 



  (C) Installation and maintenance of traffic signals, traffic signs, street markings 
and other traffic control devices as the need therefore is established by appropriate 
study and traffic standards; and 

 
  (D) Installation and maintenance of street lighting in accordance with established 

policies of the City; 
 

(iii)   The outer boundaries of the subject property abut existing roadways.  The property 
owner agrees that no improvements are required on such roadways to service the 
property.    

 
(3)   Capital Improvements.  Construction of the following capital improvements shall be 
initiated after the effective date of the annexation:  None.  Upon development of the subject property or 
redevelopment, the landowner will be responsible for the development costs the same as a developer in 
a similarly situated area under the ordinances in effect at the time of development or redevelopment.  
No additional capital improvements are necessary at this time to service the subject property the same 
as similarly situated properties. 
 
(4)  Term.  If not previously expired, this service plan expires at the end of ten (10) years. 
 
(5)  Property Description.  The legal description of the subject property is as set forth in the 
Annexation Ordinance and exhibits attached to the Annexation Ordinance to which this Service Plan is 
attached.  
 
 

  

 

 



















AGENDA ITEM # 14 

 
Executive Summary 

December 3, 2015 

 

Agenda Subject:  First public hearing on the proposed annexation of multiple tracts of land 
totaling 229.22 acres, more or less, generally located north of Hero Way and west of Ronald 
Reagan Blvd. in Williamson County, Texas. 
  
Background:  The City Council approved the resolution accepting the petition for voluntary 
annexation for the subject tracts at its October 15, 2015 meeting.  The property includes 
approximately 229.22 acres on the west side Ronald Reagan Blvd north of Hero Way and is the 
additional land that was approved by the City Council on March 5, 2015 to be included in the 
Palmera Ridge MUD plus two additional tracts.   The resolution set the two public hearings for 
December 3, 2015 and December 17, 2015.  The first reading of the ordinance is scheduled for 
January 7, 2016 and the second and final reading is scheduled for January 21, 2016.  
 
This is a voluntary annexation. 
     
Origination:  Applicants 
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends conducting the first public hearing. 
 
Attachments:  

1. Annexation schedule 
2. Location maps 
3. Annexation resolution and service plan 
4. Annexation petition 
 

Prepared by:   Tom Yantis, AICP 
 Assistant City Manager 
 
 11/18/2015 

 



SCHEDULE FOR VOLUNTARY ANNEXATION  
TOUNGATE / PALMERA BLUFF +/- 220.30 Acres, VALLEY VISTA AND CR 269 

DATE ACTION/EVENT LEGAL AUTHORITY 
October 15, 2015 
 

COUNCIL BY WRITTEN RESOLUTION Directs 
notification to land owners; and sets two (2) Public 
Hearings December 3, 2015 and December 17 2015; 
Council directs development of service plan for area to be 
annexed.  

Loc. Gov’t Code, §§ 43.063 & 43.065; 
Public Hearings: are on or after the 40th day 
but before 20th day before institution of 
proceedings.  

By November 2, 2015 NOTICE TO property owners & utility providers  Loc. Gov’t Code § 43.062(a) 
November 18, 2015** 
Publish notice of First 
Public Hearing and 
send school district 
notice 
 
December 2, 2015** 
Publish notice of  
Second Public Hearing  

NEWSPAPER NOTICES RE: FIRST AND SECOND 
PUBLIC HEARINGS; (If applicable, certified Notice to 
Railroad). POST NOTICE OF HEARINGS ON CITY’S 
WEBSITE AND MAINTAIN UNTIL HEARINGS 
COMPLETE 
 
SCHOOL DISTRICT NOTICE (notify each school 
district of possible impact w/in the period prescribed for 
publishing the notice of the First Public Hearing.)  

Not less than 10 days nor more than 20 days 
before 1st and 2nd public hearings.  Loc. 
Gov’t Code, §43.063 (c). 
 
 
 
Loc. Gov’t Code § 43.905; send school 
district notice not less than 10 days nor more 
than 20 days before the First Public Hearing. 

Ten days after the date 
the first notice of 
Public Hearing is 
published 

LAST DAY FOR SUBMISSION OF WRITTEN 
PROTEST BY RESIDENTS (10 days after first 
newspaper notice) 

Site hearing required if 10% of adult 
residents of tracts protest within 10 days after 
1st newspaper notice. Loc. Gov’t Code, § 
43.063 (b) 

December 3, 2015* 1st PUBLIC HEARING AND PRESENT SERVICE 
PLAN (Not more than 40 days before the 1st reading of 
ordinance) REGULAR MEETING 

Not less than 20 days nor more than 40 days 
before reading of ordinance.  Loc. Gov’t 
Code, §§ 43.063(a) & 43.065.  

December 17, 2015* 2nd PUBLIC HEARING AND PRESENT SERVICE 
PLAN (At least 20 days before 1st reading of ordinance.) 
REGULAR MEETING 

Not less than 20 days nor more than 40 days 
before reading of ordinance.  Loc. Gov’t 
Code, §§ 43.063(a) & 43.065. 

Institution Date 
January 7, 2016* 

FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE  
REGULAR MEETING 

Date of institution of proceedings.  Not less 
than 20 days from the second public hearing 
nor more than 40 days from the first public 
hearing. 

January 21, 2016; 
Or at a special called 
meeting after the 1st 
First Reading   

SECOND-FINAL READING OF ORDINANCE  
REGULAR MEETING 

Not more than 90 days after 1st reading of 
Ordinance § 43.064. 

Within 30 days of 
Second Reading  

CITY SENDS COPY OF MAP showing boundary 
changes to County Voter Registrar in a format that is 
compatible with mapping format used by registrar 

Elec. Code §42.0615 

Within 60 days of 
Second Reading 

CITY PROVIDES CERTIFIED COPY OF 
ORDINANCE AND MAPS TO:  
 

1. County Clerk 
2. County Appraisal District 
3. County Tax Assessor Collector 
4. 911 Addressing 
5. Sheriff’s Office 
6. City Department Heads 
7. State Comptroller 
8. Franchise Holders 

 

*Dates in BOLD are MANDATORY dates to follow this schedule.  Please advise if deviation. 
**Newspaper notices to paper by 5p.m. the preceding Wednesday. 
 



! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

PALMERA RIDGE

5D

4C
2B

4C

3B

2B

2B

2B2B2B 2B2B
2B2B

2B

2B
2B

2B

2B 2B 2B2B 2B2B2B

2B

2B

2B

CR
 27

0

RO
NA

LD
 W

 R
EA

GA
N 

BL
VD

BAKER LN

CR 26
7

CR 264

ORCHARD DR

CHRISTOPHER LN

BELEN DR

CR 274MI
KE

S 
W

AY

AIRPORT DR

KING LN

VIA DE SIENNA BLVD

VISTA HEIGHTS DR

CARRETERA DR

CR
 26

6

JENNIFER LN

PVR 918

LEN BAR LN

BRADLEY RANCH RD

E SAN GABRIEL PKWY

HAWKINS DR
NORWOOD DR

RO
NA

LD
 W

 R
EA

GA
N 

BL
VD

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

± 0 200

Feet

Palmera Bluff/Toungate Annexation

Attachment #4
Location Exhibit
Palmera Bluff/Toungate

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits



  

RESOLUTION NO.  15-018-00     
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS, ACCEPTING 
THE PETITION FOR ANNEXATION OF A 229.22 ACRES, MORE OR 
LESS, TRACT OF LAND LOCATED IN WILLIAMSON COUNTY, 
TEXAS; SETTING AN ANNEXATION SCHEDULE; PROVIDING FOR 
OPEN MEETINGS AND OTHER RELATED MATTERS. 

 
 WHEREAS, the owners of certain property located within Williamson County, Texas, has 
petitioned the City of Leander, Texas, (herein the “City”), a home-rule City, for annexation of said 
property, more particularly described herein (the “subject property”),  into the City limits; 
 
 WHEREAS, the subject property is contiguous and adjacent to the corporate limits of the 
City and the owners have made application for annexation;  
 
 WHEREAS, after review and consideration of such petition for annexation, the City 
Council finds that the property is exempt from the City’s annexation plan pursuant to § 43.052 
(h)(2) of the Local Government Code; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the petitioner has agreed and consented to the annexation of the subject 
property by the City and further agreed to be bound by all acts, ordinances, and all other legal action 
now in force and effect within the corporate limits of the City and all those which may be hereafter 
adopted, as modified by that certain Addendum No. 1 to the Development and Annexation 
Agreement (Toungate Tract – Palmera Bluff) between the City and Hanna/Magee L.P. #1, recorded 
under Document No. 2015022090, Official Public Records of Williamson County, Texas (the 
“Addendum”), which Addendum supplements the Development and Annexation Agreement 
between the City, Palmera Ridge Development, Inc. and Palmera Ridge Municipal Utility District;  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS, THAT: 
 

Section 1. Findings.  The foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and correct and 
are hereby adopted by the City Council and made a part hereof for all purposes as findings of 
fact.     
 
  Section 2.  Proceedings.  The petition for annexation of the following property, including 
the abutting streets, roadways, and rights of way, not previously annexed into the City and the draft 
services plan shown in Exhibit “C”, submitted by Petitioner, are hereby accepted:   
 
 All that certain tract or parcel of land being 220.30 acres, more or less, located in 

Williamson County, Texas, being the “Additional Land” described in the Addendum 
and being more particularly shown and described in the Exhibit “A” attached hereto 
and incorporated herein for all purposes.    

 
 All that certain tract or parcel of land being 8.92 acres, more or less, , located in 
 

 



  

Williamson County, Texas, being the “Additional Land” described in the Addendum 
and being more particularly shown and described in the Exhibit “B” attached hereto 
and incorporated herein for all purposes. 

 
Two public hearings are set for the dates of December 3, 2015 and December 17, 2015.  Notice of 
such hearings shall be posted and the hearings shall be open to the public to accept public comment 
on the annexation request. 
 

Section 3. Severability. Should any section or part of this Resolution be held 
unconstitutional, illegal, or invalid, or the application to any person or circumstance thereof 
ineffective or inapplicable, such unconstitutionality, illegality, invalidity, or ineffectiveness of 
such section or part shall in no way affect, impair or invalidate the remaining portion or portions 
thereof; but as to such remaining portion or portions, the same shall be and remain in full force 
and effect and to this end the provisions of this Resolution are declared to be severable. 

 
Section 4.  Open Meetings.  It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting 

at which this Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the 
time, place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, 
Chapt. 551, Tex. Gov't. Code. 
 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED this the 15th day of October, 2015. 

 
 
ATTEST:      THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS 
 
 
______________________________   ________________________________ 
Debbie Haile, City Secretary    Christopher Fielder, Mayor 

  

  
  

 

 

















































AGENDA ITEM # 15 

 
Executive Summary 

December 3, 2015 

 

Agenda Subject:  First public hearing on the proposed annexation of multiple tracts of land 
totaling 117.5 acres, more or less, generally located along and abutting Hero Way (Formerly 
County Road 269) in Williamson County, Texas pursuant to the terms and expiration of 
Development Agreements under Section 43.035, Texas Local Government Code. 
  
Background:  The City Council approved the resolution accepting the petition for voluntary 
annexation for the subject tracts at its October 15, 2015 meeting.  The properties include all those 
tracts subject to development agreements under Section 43.035 that were entered into between 
the City and property owners along CR 269 (now Hero Way) in 2010. The agreements provided 
for the voluntary annexation of the properties to be initiated after the expiration of the term of the 
agreements which was 5 years.  The resolution set the two public hearings for December 3, 2015 
and December 17, 2015.  The first reading of the ordinance is scheduled for January 7, 2016 and 
the second and final reading is scheduled for January 21, 2016.  
 
This is a voluntary annexation pursuant to the annexation agreements. 
     
Origination:  Applicants 
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends conducting the first public hearing. 
 
Attachments:  

1. Annexation schedule 
2. Location maps 
3. Annexation resolution and service plan 
 

Prepared by:   Tom Yantis, AICP 
 Assistant City Manager 
 
 11/18/2015 

 



SCHEDULE FOR VOLUNTARY ANNEXATION  
TOUNGATE / PALMERA BLUFF +/- 220.30 Acres, VALLEY VISTA AND CR 269 

DATE ACTION/EVENT LEGAL AUTHORITY 
October 15, 2015 
 

COUNCIL BY WRITTEN RESOLUTION Directs 
notification to land owners; and sets two (2) Public 
Hearings December 3, 2015 and December 17 2015; 
Council directs development of service plan for area to be 
annexed.  

Loc. Gov’t Code, §§ 43.063 & 43.065; 
Public Hearings: are on or after the 40th day 
but before 20th day before institution of 
proceedings.  

By November 2, 2015 NOTICE TO property owners & utility providers  Loc. Gov’t Code § 43.062(a) 
November 18, 2015** 
Publish notice of First 
Public Hearing and 
send school district 
notice 
 
December 2, 2015** 
Publish notice of  
Second Public Hearing  

NEWSPAPER NOTICES RE: FIRST AND SECOND 
PUBLIC HEARINGS; (If applicable, certified Notice to 
Railroad). POST NOTICE OF HEARINGS ON CITY’S 
WEBSITE AND MAINTAIN UNTIL HEARINGS 
COMPLETE 
 
SCHOOL DISTRICT NOTICE (notify each school 
district of possible impact w/in the period prescribed for 
publishing the notice of the First Public Hearing.)  

Not less than 10 days nor more than 20 days 
before 1st and 2nd public hearings.  Loc. 
Gov’t Code, §43.063 (c). 
 
 
 
Loc. Gov’t Code § 43.905; send school 
district notice not less than 10 days nor more 
than 20 days before the First Public Hearing. 

Ten days after the date 
the first notice of 
Public Hearing is 
published 

LAST DAY FOR SUBMISSION OF WRITTEN 
PROTEST BY RESIDENTS (10 days after first 
newspaper notice) 

Site hearing required if 10% of adult 
residents of tracts protest within 10 days after 
1st newspaper notice. Loc. Gov’t Code, § 
43.063 (b) 

December 3, 2015* 1st PUBLIC HEARING AND PRESENT SERVICE 
PLAN (Not more than 40 days before the 1st reading of 
ordinance) REGULAR MEETING 

Not less than 20 days nor more than 40 days 
before reading of ordinance.  Loc. Gov’t 
Code, §§ 43.063(a) & 43.065.  

December 17, 2015* 2nd PUBLIC HEARING AND PRESENT SERVICE 
PLAN (At least 20 days before 1st reading of ordinance.) 
REGULAR MEETING 

Not less than 20 days nor more than 40 days 
before reading of ordinance.  Loc. Gov’t 
Code, §§ 43.063(a) & 43.065. 

Institution Date 
January 7, 2016* 

FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE  
REGULAR MEETING 

Date of institution of proceedings.  Not less 
than 20 days from the second public hearing 
nor more than 40 days from the first public 
hearing. 

January 21, 2016; 
Or at a special called 
meeting after the 1st 
First Reading   

SECOND-FINAL READING OF ORDINANCE  
REGULAR MEETING 

Not more than 90 days after 1st reading of 
Ordinance § 43.064. 

Within 30 days of 
Second Reading  

CITY SENDS COPY OF MAP showing boundary 
changes to County Voter Registrar in a format that is 
compatible with mapping format used by registrar 

Elec. Code §42.0615 

Within 60 days of 
Second Reading 

CITY PROVIDES CERTIFIED COPY OF 
ORDINANCE AND MAPS TO:  
 

1. County Clerk 
2. County Appraisal District 
3. County Tax Assessor Collector 
4. 911 Addressing 
5. Sheriff’s Office 
6. City Department Heads 
7. State Comptroller 
8. Franchise Holders 

 

*Dates in BOLD are MANDATORY dates to follow this schedule.  Please advise if deviation. 
**Newspaper notices to paper by 5p.m. the preceding Wednesday. 
 



! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

PALMERA RIDGE

MARBELLA

STEWARTCROSSING

RIDGMAR LANDING

CR
 27

0

HERO WAY

RM 2243
RO

NA
LD

 W
 R

EA
GA

N 
BL

VD

CR
 26

9

183A TOLL RD NB

183A TOLL RD SB

BAKER LN

183A TOLL RD FR NB

183A TOLL RD FR SB

PVR 918

BELEN DR

CR 274MI
KE

S 
W

AY

AIRPORT DR CR 264

E SAN GABRIEL PKWY

JENNIFER LN

WINDING OAK TRL

HAWKINS DR
NORWOOD DR

SA
NTA

 CAT
ALIN

A W
AY

RM 2243

RO
NA

LD
 W

 R
EA

GA
N 

BL
VD

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

± 0 200

Feet

CR 269 Annexation

Attachment #3
Location Exhibit

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

City Limits
Subject Property
Extra-Territorial Jurisdiction



RESOLUTION NO.  15-020-00    
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS, INITIATING THE 
VOLUNTARY ANNEXATION OF TRACTS OF LAND LOCATED ALONG 
AND ABUTTING HERO WAY (FORMERLY COUNTY ROAD 269) IN 
WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS PURSUANT TO THE TERMS AND 
EXPIRATION OF DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENTS UNDER SECTION 
43.035, TEXAS LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE; SETTING AN 
ANNEXATION SCHEDULE; PROVIDING FOR OPEN MEETINGS AND 
OTHER RELATED MATTERS. 

 
 WHEREAS, the owners of certain properties located within Williamson County, Texas, have 
petitioned the City of Leander, Texas, (herein the “City”), a home-rule City, for annexation of said 
properties, more particularly described herein (the “subject properties”), into the City limits pursuant to 
the terms of sixteen separate Development Agreements Under Section 43.035, Texas Local 
Government Code (the “Development Agreements”); 
 
 WHEREAS, the subject properties are contiguous and adjacent to the corporate limits of the 
City and the owners have made application for voluntary annexation of the subject properties pursuant 
to Section 3(a)(5) and 3(b) of the Development Agreements which authorizes the annexation of the 
subject properties at the City Council’s discretion upon the expiration of the Development Agreements;  
 
 WHEREAS, the five year term of the Development Agreements expires on or about October 
21, 2015;  
 
 WHEREAS, after review and consideration of such petitions for annexation, the City Council 
finds that the subject properties are exempt from the City’s annexation plan pursuant to § 43.052 (h)(2) 
of the Local Government Code; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the petitioners have agreed and consented to the annexation of the subject 
properties by the City and further agreed to be bound by all acts, ordinances, and all other legal action 
now in force and effect within the corporate limits of the City and all those which may be hereafter 
adopted;  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF LEANDER, TEXAS, THAT: 
 

Section 1. Findings.  The foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and correct and are 
hereby adopted by the City Council and made a part hereof for all purposes as findings of fact.     
 
  Section 2.  Proceedings.  The petitions for annexation of the following properties, including 
the abutting streets, roadways, and rights of way, not previously annexed into the City and the draft 
services plan shown in Exhibit “B”, submitted by Petitioners and owners of the subject properties, are 

  

 

 



hereby accepted:   
 
 All those certain tracts or parcels of land located along and abutting County Road 269 

in Williamson County, Texas, being more particularly shown and described in the 
Development Agreements filed and recorded in the Official Public Records of 
Williamson County, Texas as Document Numbers: 2010083081, 2010083082, 
2010083083, 2010083084, 2010083085, 2010083086, 2010083087, 2010083088, 
2010083089, 2010083090, 2010083091, 2010083092, 2010083093, 2010083094, 
2010083095, 2010083096 and being shown in Exhibit “A” attached hereto and 
incorporated herein for all purposes.    

 
Two public hearings are set for the dates of December 3, 2015 and December 17, 2015.  Notice of such 
hearings shall be posted and the hearings shall be open to the public to accept public comment on the 
annexation request. 
 

Section 3. Severability. Should any section or part of this Resolution be held 
unconstitutional, illegal, or invalid, or the application to any person or circumstance thereof 
ineffective or inapplicable, such unconstitutionality, illegality, invalidity, or ineffectiveness of such 
section or part shall in no way affect, impair or invalidate the remaining portion or portions thereof; 
but as to such remaining portion or portions, the same shall be and remain in full force and effect and 
to this end the provisions of this Resolution are declared to be severable. 

 
Section 4.  Open Meetings.  It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at 

which this Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapt. 551, 
Tex. Gov't. Code. 
 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED this the 15th day of October, 2015. 

 
 
ATTEST:      THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS 
 
 
______________________________   ________________________________ 
Debbie Haile, City Secretary    Christopher Fielder, Mayor 

  

  

  

 

 



Exhibit “B” 
 

MUNICIPAL SERVICES PLAN 
FOR PROPERTY TO BE 

ANNEXED INTO THE CITY OF LEANDER 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Leander, Texas (the “City”) intends to institute annexation 
proceedings for tracts of land described more fully hereinafter (referred to herein as the “subject 
property”); 
 
 WHEREAS, Section 43.056, Loc. Gov't. Code, requires a service plan be adopted with the 
annexation ordinance;  
 
 WHEREAS, the subject property is not included in the municipal annexation plan and is 
exempt from the requirements thereof; 
 
 WHEREAS, infrastructure provided for herein and that existing are sufficient to service the 
subject property on the same terms and conditions as other similarly situated properties currently within 
the City limits and no capital improvements are required to offer municipal services on the same terms 
and conditions as other similarly situated properties within the City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is found that all statutory requirements have been satisfied and the City is 
authorized by Chapt. 43, Loc. Gov't. Code, to annex the subject property into the City;  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the following services will be provided for the subject property on the 
effective date of annexation: 
 
(1) General Municipal Services.  Pursuant to the requests of the owner and this Plan, the 
following services shall be provided immediately from the effective date of the annexation: 
 
 A. Police protection as follows: 
 
 Routine patrols of areas, radio response to calls for police service and all other police services 

now being offered to the citizens of the City. 
 
 B. Fire protection and Emergency Medical Services as follows: 
 
 Fire protection by the present personnel and equipment of the City fire fighting force and the 

volunteer fire fighting force with the limitations of water available.  Radio response for 
Emergency Medical Services with the present personnel and equipment. 

 
 C. Solid waste collection services as follows: 
 

  

 

 



 Solid waste collection and services as now being offered to the citizens of the City. 
 
 D. Animal control as follows: 
 
 Service by present personnel, equipment and facilities or by contract with a third party, as 

provided within the City. 
 
 E. Maintenance of parks and playgrounds within the City. 
 
 F. Inspection services in conjunction with building permits and routine City code 

enforcement services by present personnel, equipment and facilities. 
 
 G. Maintenance of other City facilities, buildings and service. 
 
 H. Land use regulation as follows: 
 
 On the effective date of annexation, the zoning jurisdiction of the City shall be extended to 

include the annexed area, and the use of all property therein shall be grandfathered; and shall be 
temporarily zoned “SFR-1-B” with the intent to rezone the subject property upon request of the 
landowner or staff.  The Planning & Zoning Commission and the City Council will consider 
rezoning the subject property at future times in response to requests submitted by the 
landowner(s) or authorized city staff.   

 
(2) Scheduled Municipal Services.  Due to the size and vacancy of the subject property, the 
plans and schedule for the development of the subject property, the following municipal services will 
be provided on a schedule and at increasing levels of service as provided in this Plan:  
 
 A. Water service and maintenance of water facilities as follows: 
 
 (i) Inspection of water distribution lines as provided by statutes of the State of Texas. 
 
 (ii) In accordance with the applicable rules and regulations for the provision of water 

service, water service will be provided to the subjects properties, or applicable portions thereof, 
by the utility holding a water certificate of convenience and necessity (“CCN”) for the subject 
properties, or portions thereof as applicable, or absent a water CCN, by the utility in whose 
jurisdiction the subject properties, or portions thereof as applicable, are located, in accordance 
with all the ordinances, regulations, and policies of the City in effect from time to time for the 
extension of water service.  If connected to the City’s water utility system, the subject 
properties’ owner shall construct the internal water lines and pay the costs of line extension and 
construction of such facilities necessary to provide water service to the subject properties as 
required in City ordinances.  Upon acceptance of the water lines within the subject properties 
and any off-site improvements, water service will be provided by the City utility department on 
the same terms, conditions and requirements as are applied to all similarly situated areas and 

  

 

 



customers of the City; subject to all the ordinances, regulations and policies of the City in effect 
from time to time.  The system will be accepted and maintained by the City in accordance with 
its usual acceptance and maintenance policies.  New water line extensions will be installed and 
extended upon request under the same costs and terms as with other similarly situated 
customers of the City.  The ordinances of the City in effect at the time a request for service is 
submitted shall govern the costs and request for service.  The continued use of a water well 
that is in use on the effective date of the annexation and is in compliance with applicable 
rules and regulations shall be permitted and such use may continue until the subject 
properties’ owner requests and is able to connect to the City’s water utility system. 

 
 B. Wastewater service and maintenance of wastewater service as follows: 
 
 (i) Inspection of sewer lines as provided by statutes of the State of Texas. 
 
 (ii) In accordance with the applicable rules and regulations for the provision of wastewater 

service, wastewater service will be provided to the subjects properties, or applicable portions 
thereof, by the utility holding a wastewater CCN for the subject properties, or portions thereof 
as applicable, or absent a wastewater CCN, by the utility in whose jurisdiction the subject 
properties, or portions thereof as applicable, are located, in accordance with all the ordinances, 
regulations, and policies of the City in effect from time to time for the extension of wastewater 
service.  If connected to the City’s wastewater utility system, the subject properties’ owner shall 
construct the internal wastewater lines and pay the costs of line extension and construction of 
facilities necessary to provide wastewater service to the subject properties as required in City 
ordinances.  Upon acceptance of the wastewater lines within the subject properties and any off-
site improvements, wastewater service will be provided by the City utility department on the 
same terms, conditions and requirements as are applied to all similarly situated areas and 
customers of the City, subject to all the ordinances, regulations and policies of the City in effect 
from time to time.  The wastewater system will be accepted and maintained by the City in 
accordance with its usual policies.  Requests for new wastewater line extensions will be 
installed and extended upon request under the same costs and terms as with other similarly 
situated customers of the City.  The ordinances in effect at the time a request for service is 
submitted shall govern the costs and request for service.  The continued use of a septic system 
that is in use on the effective date of the annexation and is in compliance with all applicable 
rules and regulations shall be permitted and such use may continue until the subject property 
owner requests and is able to connect to the City’s wastewater utility system. 

 
 C. Maintenance of streets and rights-of-way as appropriate as follows: 
 

(i) Provide maintenance services on existing public streets within the subject property 
and other streets that are hereafter constructed and finally accepted by the City.  The 
maintenance of the streets and roads will be limited as follows:  

 

  

 

 



  (A) Emergency maintenance of streets, repair of hazardous potholes, measures 
necessary for traffic flow, etc.; and 

 
  (B) Routine maintenance as presently performed by the City. 
 

(ii) The City will maintain existing public streets within the subject property, and 
following installation and acceptance of new roadways by the City as provided by city 
ordinance, including any required traffic signals, traffic signs, street markings, other traffic 
control devices and street lighting, the City will maintain such newly constructed public 
streets, roadways and rights-of-way within the boundaries of the subject property, as follows: 

 
(A) As provided in C(i)(A)&(B) above; 

 
  (B) Reconstruction and resurfacing of streets, installation of drainage facilities, 

construction of curbs, gutters and other such major improvements as the need 
therefore is determined by the governing body under City policies;  

 
  (C) Installation and maintenance of traffic signals, traffic signs, street markings 

and other traffic control devices as the need therefore is established by appropriate 
study and traffic standards; and 

 
  (D) Installation and maintenance of street lighting in accordance with established 

policies of the City; 
 

(iii)   The outer boundaries of the subject property abut existing roadways.  The property 
owner agrees that no improvements are required on such roadways to service the 
property.    

 
(3)   Capital Improvements.  Construction of the following capital improvements shall be 
initiated after the effective date of the annexation:  None.  Upon development of the subject property or 
redevelopment, the landowner will be responsible for the development costs the same as a developer in 
a similarly situated area under the ordinances in effect at the time of development or redevelopment.  
No additional capital improvements are necessary at this time to service the subject property the same 
as similarly situated properties. 
 
(4)  Term.  If not previously expired, this service plan expires at the end of ten (10) years. 
 
(5)  Property Description.  The legal description of the subject property is as set forth in the 
Annexation Ordinance and exhibits attached to the Annexation Ordinance to which this Service Plan is 
attached.  

 
 

 

  

 

 



































AGENDA ITEM # 16 
 

 

 
Executive Summary 

 
December 03, 2015 

 
 
Agenda Subject: Zoning Case 15-Z-010:  Hold a public hearing and consider action 

on the rezoning of two parcels of land located at 1208 S. Bagdad 
Road for 51.84 acres more or less; WCAD Parcels R031330 and 
R031331.  Currently, the property is zoned MF-2-B (Multi-Family) 
and GC-3-C (General Commercial).  The applicant is proposing to 
zone the property to PUD (Planned Unit Development) with a base 
zoning district of MF-2-A (Multi-Family), Leander, Williamson 
County, Texas.  

 
Background: This request is the second step in the rezoning process.   
 
Origination: Applicant: Anthony Goode on behalf of AHV-RS Trails at 

Leander, LLC 
 
Financial  
Consideration: None 
 
Recommendation: See Planning Analysis.  Commissioner Hines moved to approve 

the PUD (Planned Unit Development) with a base zoning district 
of MF-2-A (Multi-Family) with the following conditions at the 
November 24, 2015 meeting: 
1. The community will not be gated. 
2. The drives inside the property will meet the width requirements 

for private roads. 
3. Access to Winecup will be a regular access, not an emergency 

access with a crash gate. 
4. Install a painted crosswalk and appropriate signage (as 

determined by the Parks & Recreation and Public Works 
Departments) for the trail crossing at Bagdad Road. 

5. The Type A Architectural Component is modified to limit the 
amount of stucco that qualifies as masonry to 50%. 

6. The landscaping requirements shall be increased to 150%. 



7. Architectural renderings shall be submitted with at least seven 
visually distinct elevations. 

8. The leasing office shall be moved to front on Bagdad Road and 
the parking shall be placed behind the building. 

9. Limit the fencing adjacent to the riparian corridor to wrought 
iron or decorative tubular metal. 

10. Provide a definition of soil. 
11. Provide a landscape plan per single family home for a 

minimum of two homes. 
12. City Council defers the final decision until the Commission can 

review the renderings and the landscape plans. 
 

Commissioner Schwendenman seconded the motion.  Motion 
failed with a 3 to 4 vote (Anderson, Allen, Means, and Sokol 
opposing). 

 
Commissioner Hines moved to approve an alternate 
recommendation of  the PUD (Planned Unit Development) with a 
base zoning district of MF-2-A (Multi-Family) with the following 
conditions: 
1. Install a painted crosswalk and appropriate signage (as 

determined by the Parks & Recreation and Public Works 
Departments) for the trail crossing at Bagdad Road. 

2. The Type A Architectural Component is modified to limit the 
amount of stucco that qualifies as masonry to 50%. 

3. The landscaping requirements shall be increased to 150%. 
4. Architectural renderings shall be submitted with at least seven 

visually distinct elevations. 
5. The leasing office shall be moved to front on Bagdad Road and 

the parking shall be placed behind the building. 
6. Limit the fencing adjacent to the riparian corridor to wrought 

iron or decorative tubular metal. 
7. Provide a definition of soil. 
8. Provide a landscape plan per single family home for a 

minimum of two homes. 
9. City Council defers the final decision until the Commission can 

review the renderings and the landscape plans. 
 

Commissioner Means seconded the motion.  Motion passed with a 
6 to 1 vote (Cotten opposing). 

 
 
Attachments: 1.   Planning Analysis 
 2.   Current Zoning Map 
 3. Proposed Zoning Map 
 4.   Aerial Map 



 5. Location Map 
 6. Notification Map  
 7. PUD Notes and Conceptual Site Layout and Land Use Plan 
 8. Letter of Intent  
 9.  Ordinance 
 10. Minutes-Planning & Zoning Commission November 24, 2015 
  
Prepared By:   Tom Yantis, AICP 
 Assistant City Manager 11/25/2015 



Attachment # 1                 

 
P L A N N I N G A N A L Y S I S  

 
ZONING CASE 15-Z-010 

 
TRAILS AT LEANDER PUD 

 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Owner: AHV-RS Trails at Leander, LLC 
 
Current Zoning: MF-2-B (Multi-Family)  
 GC-3-C (General Commercial)   
  
Proposed Zoning: PUD (Planned Unit Development) with a base zoning district of MF-2-A 

(Multi-Family) 
  
Size and Location: The property is located at 1208 South Bagdad Road and is approximately 

51.84 acres in size. 
 
Staff Contact:   Robin M. Griffin, AICP   
 Senior Planner      
   
ABUTTING ZONING AND LAND USE: 
 
The table below lists the abutting zoning and land uses. 
 

 ZONING LAND USE 

NORTH SFU-2-B Established Residential (Mason Creek & Magnolia Creek)  

EAST SFU/MH-2-B Established Residential (High Chaparral) 

SOUTH SFU/MH-2-B Established Residential (High Chaparral) 

WEST 
SFU-2-B 
LC-2-B 

PUD 

Established Residential (Mason Creek) 
Church 
NW Soccer Club 

        

  

 



Attachment # 1                 

COMPOSITE ZONING ORDINANCE INTENT STATEMENTS 
 
USE COMPONENTS:   

PUD – PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT: 
The purpose and intent of the Planned Unit Development (PUD) district is to design unified 
standards for development in order to facilitate flexible, customized zoning and subdivision 
standards which encourage imaginative and innovative designs for the development of 
property within the City.  The intent of this zoning request is to provide for the design of a 
development which permits a condominium regime detached residential development.  The 
intent of this zoning district is to cohesively regulate the development to assure compatibility 
with adjacent single-family residences, neighborhoods, and commercial properties within the 
region. 

  
 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN STATEMENTS: 
 
The following Comprehensive Plan statements may be relevant to this case: 
 Plan for continued growth and development that improves the community’s overall 

quality of life and economic viability. 
 Provide for a variety of sustainable housing options for all age groups and economic 

levels.  Determine ways to successfully integrate this variety within neighborhoods so as 
to accommodate the different needs of families throughout their life cycle.  Create more 
desirable and livable neighborhoods while respecting the goal of maintaining stable real 
estate values and housing marketability. 

 Establish high standards for development. 
 

 
 

ANALYSIS: 
 
The applicant is requesting the PUD (Planned Unit Development) district in order to allow for 
the development of a detached condominium regime residential community.  The properties to 
the north, east and south are currently developed single-family neighborhoods.  The properties to 
the west are a mix of commercial uses and a single-family neighborhood on the west side of 
Bagdad Road. 
 
A PUD district can be an appropriate district in this situation because it offers the applicant the 
opportunity to design a zoning district that will provide for a condominium style residential 
development with limits to the permitted density.  The Composite Zoning Ordinance does not 
currently include a district that would permit this type of development.   
 
The applicant is proposing the MF-2-A base zoning district to accommodate this style of 
development.  The proposal includes 220 detached residential units.  The current zoning district 
would permit the development of multi-family units at approximately 18 units per acre.  The 
proposed zoning would yield a density of 4.25 units per acre.   
 
The applicant is proposing the Type A Architectural Component which would require all 
structures to be 85% masonry and include at least 5 architectural features.  In addition, this 

 



Attachment # 1                 

project will comply with the current standards regarding garages and parking.  The ordinance 
includes provisions requiring a variety of elevations and prohibiting all the homes to be identical 
on the same street.   
 
This project will continue the Mason Creek Trail from the existing segment located on the west 
side of Bagdad Road to the proposed segment that will be located in Magnolia Creek.  An 
amenity center including a pool, clubhouse, and pavilion will be provided as part of this project. 
 
They have also requested a waiver to the Riparian Corridor Setbacks.  Currently, the ordinance 
requires a 100 foot setback from centerline of any riparian corridor.  They have proposed to 
average the total riparian corridor setback to facilitate the placement of water quality 
improvements.  They will compensate for any encroachments by adding more land to the setback 
in other areas and restoring the corridor with native plans.  This corridor is currently channelized 
and does not support wildlife.   
 
Below, please find a table including the proposed higher standards and requested waivers 
associated with this project. 
 

HIGHER STANDARDS WAIVERS 

Type A Architectural Component - 

Reduced density (220 units vs +/- 918 
units) - 

Provide landscape plan for the 
restoration of the Riparian Corridor 

Allow for the riparian corridor buffer 
averaging 

- Allow ponds to encroach into the riparian 
corridor 

- Reduction in pond wall limitations 

Additional Landscaping Equal to the 
size of the Pond Area 

Not providing landscape area equivalent 
to the MF standards – 20% 

 
The frontage of this property along Bagdad Road is located within a Mixed Use Corridor.  This 
corridor provides for a variety of residential uses including small lot single-family, townhome, 
duplexes, and quadplexes.  The portion of the property that is not within the Mixed Use Corridor 
is within the Neighborhood Residential land use category which calls for single-family 
development of varying densities. 
 
 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
The proposed PUD would permit a condominium regime with detached residential units on a 
multi-family site plan.  The proposed PUD includes the Type A architectural standard which is 
intended to ensure the highest quality architectural design.   
 
While the proposed multi-family base zoning district and restricted density of the PUD would be 
appropriate within the Mixed-Use Corridor component of the property, the application of the 

 



Attachment # 1                 

multi-family district to the remainder of the property within the Neighborhood Residential land 
use category is of concern to staff.  The Neighborhood Residential areas are intended for single-
family development, but the proposed PUD would allow for the development of a multi-family 
project on the entire site.  The site is currently zoned multi-family and the proposed PUD 
represents an improvement over the current zoning, but is still not entirely consistent with the 
intent of the Comprehensive Plan. 
 
If the Planning & Zoning Commission chooses to recommend approval of the proposed PUD, 
staff suggests that the following provisions are included:   

• An architectural rendering for all buildings is provided that specifies the building 
materials, and architectural features. 

• The Type A standard is modified to stipulate a reduced percentage of stucco that is 
allowed to count toward the masonry requirement. 

• Increased landscaping and masonry screening walls are required within the setback areas 
along and at the entrance to the project at Bagdad Road, at the entrance to the project at 
Cotton Patch Trail and Winecup Drive. 

 



! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !
! !

! !

WESTVIEWMEADOWSSEC 4

LEANDERHEIGHTS, SEC 3

LEANDERHEIGHTS,SEC 1

MAGNOLIA CREEK

MASONCREEKNORTH,SEC 2

MASONCREEKNORTH,SEC 1

MASON CREEK.SEC 1

MASON CREEK.SEC 3

MASON CREEK.SEC 4

MASON CREEK.SEC 5

FALCON OAKS,SEC 1

BLEDSOE
PARK

COUNTY GLEN,SEC 7
COUNTY GLEN,SEC 5

COUNTY GLEN,SEC 2

HERNANDO'S HIDEAWAY

HIGHCHAPARRAL

LEANDERHEIGHTS,SEC 2

LEANDER
PUBLIC

LIBRARY

MASON
CREEK
PARK

MASON
HOMESTEAD

COUNTY GLEN,SEC 4

MASON RANCH, PH 1

^

^ ^

2B

2A

1B

2A

2A 2A1B

S 
W

ES
T 

DR

SO
NNY D

R

S BAGDAD RD

TOPAZ LN

LOS VISTA DR

EAGLES WAY

BONITA VERDE DR

MOON GLOW
 DR

TULA TRL

CRYSTAL FALLS PKWY

HI
GH

 C
HA

PA
RR

AL
 D

R

MICA LN

HONEYSUCKLE DR

PA
RK

WOOD
 DR

LANTANA DR

KALUGA TRL

TYRONE DR

COYOTE LN

TAMARAC TRL

GR
EE

NIN
G W

AY

MASON CREEK BLVD

SNOW GOOSE

W
OODDUCK TRL

ALSATIAN LN

TIE
RR

A 
AL

TO
 S

T

OLD BAGDAD RD

COTTO
N PA

TC
H TRL

DRAKE CV

CANVASBACK CREEK DR

CALLE ST

NIGHTSHADE LN

OLD QUARRY RD

REDBUD LN

MA
LL

AR
D 

LA
KE

 TR
L

CA
RT

O 
ST

FALCON OAKS DR

SHEILA DR

LA
UR

EL
 LN

LANTANA LN

CANADIAN CV

EM
BD

EN
 TR

L

GR
EY

BA
CK

 D
R

SALVIA CT

BLUEBONNET CT

ROCKROSE CT

CHICKORY CT

SORREL CT

SUNFLOWER CT

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

±
0 200

Feet

ZONING CASE 15-Z-010  Attachment #2 Current Zoning Map - Trails at Leander PUD

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits ! ! ! !

! ! ! !
! ! ! ! PUD Commercial

! ! ! !

! ! ! !
! ! ! !

PUD Mixed Use

! ! ! !
! ! ! !
! ! ! !

PUD Multi-Family

! ! ! !
! ! ! !

! ! ! ! PUD Single-Family

! ! ! !
! ! ! ! PUD Townhome

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.



! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !
! !

! !

WESTVIEWMEADOWSSEC 4

LEANDERHEIGHTS, SEC 3

LEANDERHEIGHTS,SEC 1

MAGNOLIA CREEK

MASONCREEKNORTH,SEC 2

MASONCREEKNORTH,SEC 1

MASON CREEK.SEC 1

MASON CREEK.SEC 3

MASON CREEK.SEC 4

MASON CREEK.SEC 5

FALCON OAKS,SEC 1

BLEDSOE
PARK

COUNTY GLEN,SEC 7
COUNTY GLEN,SEC 5

COUNTY GLEN,SEC 2

HERNANDO'S HIDEAWAY

HIGHCHAPARRAL

LEANDERHEIGHTS,SEC 2

LEANDER
PUBLIC

LIBRARY

MASON
CREEK
PARK

MASON
HOMESTEAD

COUNTY GLEN,SEC 4

MASON RANCH, PH 1

^

^ ^

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

2B

2A

1B

2A

2A 2A1B

S 
W

ES
T 

DR

SO
NNY D

R

S BAGDAD RD

TOPAZ LN

LOS VISTA DR

EAGLES WAY

BONITA VERDE DR

MOON GLOW
 DR

TULA TRL

CRYSTAL FALLS PKWY

HI
GH

 C
HA

PA
RR

AL
 D

R

MICA LN

HONEYSUCKLE DR

PA
RK

WOOD
 DR

LANTANA DR

KALUGA TRL

TYRONE DR

COYOTE LN

TAMARAC TRL

GR
EE

NIN
G W

AY

MASON CREEK BLVD

SNOW GOOSE

W
OODDUCK TRL

ALSATIAN LN

TIE
RR

A 
AL

TO
 S

T

OLD BAGDAD RD

COTTO
N PA

TC
H TRL

DRAKE CV

CANVASBACK CREEK DR

CALLE ST

NIGHTSHADE LN

OLD QUARRY RD

REDBUD LN

MA
LL

AR
D 

LA
KE

 TR
L

CA
RT

O 
ST

FALCON OAKS DR

SHEILA DR

LA
UR

EL
 LN

LANTANA LN

CANADIAN CV

EM
BD

EN
 TR

L

GR
EY

BA
CK

 D
R

SALVIA CT

BLUEBONNET CT

ROCKROSE CT

CHICKORY CT

SORREL CT

SUNFLOWER CT

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

±
0 200

Feet

ZONING CASE 15-Z-010  Attachment #3 Proposed Zoning Map - Trails at Leander PUD

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits ! ! ! !

! ! ! !
! ! ! ! PUD Commercial

! ! ! !

! ! ! !
! ! ! !

PUD Mixed Use

! ! ! !
! ! ! !
! ! ! !

PUD Multi-Family

! ! ! !
! ! ! !

! ! ! ! PUD Single-Family

! ! ! !
! ! ! ! PUD Townhome

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.

Proposed PUD



SONNY DR

S BAGDAD RD

TOPAZ LN

LOS VISTA DR

BONITA VERDE DR

MOON GLOW DR

HI
GH

 C
HA

PA
RR

AL
 D

R

TULA TRL

MICA LN

HONEYSUCKLE DR

LANTANA DR

KALUGA TRL

WOODDUCK TRL

COYOTE LN

ALSATIAN LN

SNOW GOOSE

TIE
RR

A A
LT

O 
ST

DRAKE CV

CANVASBACK CREEK DR

REDBUD LN
MA

LL
AR

D 
LA

KE
 TR

L

CA
RT

O 
ST

CALLE ST

LANTANA LN

EM
BD

EN
 TR

L
SALVIA CT

GR
EY

BA
CK

 D
R

BU
TT

ER
CU

P C
TBLUEBONNET CT

ROCKROSE CT

SORREL CT

SUNFLOWER CT

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

Ë0 200

Feet

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits

ZONING CASE 15-Z-010 Attachment #4
Aerial Exhibit - Approximate Boundaries
Trails at Leander PUD

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.



2A

2B

1B

2A

2A
2A

1B

SO
NNY D

R

S BAGDAD RD

LOS VISTA DR

BONITA VERDE DR

TULA TRL

HIGH CHAPARRAL DR

CRYSTAL FALLS PKWY

HONEYSUCKLE DR

LANTANA DR

MOON GLOW
 DR

TYRONE DR

PARKW
OOD DR

SNOW GOOSE

TOPAZ LN

W
OODDUCK TRL

ALSATIAN LN

TIE
RR

A 
AL

TO
 S

T

OLD BAGDAD RD

TAMARAC TRL

COTTO
N PA

TC
H TRL

DRAKE CV

MASON CREEK BLVD

CALLE ST

LA
UREL

 LN

REDBUD LN

CA
RT

O 
ST

CANVASBACK CREEK DR

MA
LL

AR
D 

LA
KE

 TR
L

COYOTE LN

LANTANA LN

CANADIAN CV

NIGHTSHADE LN

OLD QUARRY RD

GR
EY

BA
CK

 D
R

SALVIA CT

LANTANA CT

W
INECUP CT

BLUEBONNET CT

CHICKORY CT

SORREL CT

SUNFLOWER CT

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

±
0 200

Feet

ZONING CASE 15-Z-010  Attachment #5 Location Map - Trails at Leander PUD

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits ! ! ! !

! ! ! !
! ! ! ! PUD Commercial

! ! ! !

! ! ! !
! ! ! !

PUD Mixed Use

! ! ! !
! ! ! !
! ! ! !

PUD Multi-Family

! ! ! !
! ! ! !

! ! ! ! PUD Single-Family

! ! ! !
! ! ! ! PUD Townhome

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.

Mixed Use
Corridor

Commercial
Corridor



R031330

R456350

R031241

R5
36

47
4

R031329

R370094

R031299

R5
24

31
3

R031331

R031333

R502535

R035554

R089757

R456
347

R035515R035577

R475157

R035536

R5
36

45
1

R370946

R0
35

56
1

R0
35

56
5

R0
35

56
2

R456348

R035449

R456319

R4
25

72
6

R035566

R456351

R524624

R035450

R035531

R035543

R0
35

56
3

R456
346

R0
35

56
0

R095037

R399013

R0
35

55
8

R0
35

55
9

R035540

R0
35

55
6

R0
35

55
7

R0
35

53
0

R0
35

52
9

R035542
R0

35
55

2

R035538

R0
35

55
1

R050208
R4

72
54

2
R035541

R0
35

52
8

R3
62

94
1

R0
35

52
7

R0
35

52
6R035523

R050207
R0

35
52

4
R0

35
55

0
R0

35
52

5
R4

72
54

1
R0

35
54

9
R035539

R035448

R035469

R0
35

51
1 R035510

R0
35

54
8

R035518

R035473

R035451
R0

35
51

2R035517

R0
35

58
8

R035444R035507R035594

R0
35

54
6

R035532

R035471

R035534
R035535

R0
35

54
5

R035445

R035513

R035447

R035472

R035498

R035466

R035468

R0
35

56
9

R035467

R035567
R035568

R035470

R035509R0
35

57
0

R035446

R035474

R369594

R425733

R035579

R035576

R035580

R035575

R456352

R035581R035582 R035589

R035605R035604R035608 R035603

R035572

R035521
R035522

R035606

R035520

R035602

R536407

R035585

R035598

R386841

R035573 R035519

R035586
R035587

R456336

R035571

R405795

R035574

R035583
R035584

R456345

R377529

R035506

R536458

R035505

R425719

R456318

R370081

R035502

R456337

R035503

R370088

R456283

R035500R035499

R377508

R486078

R035501

R456284

R386850

R370072

R456317

R370090

R456301R536473

R425718

R456344

R456335

R377507
R377501

R456302

R536472

R098670 R456343

R370942

R370943

R370938

R367899

R425720

R536359

R370078

R377517

R536459

R096004

R370941

R370105

R524876

R370944

R370104 R524929

R536460

R456285

R386877
R386882

R377515

R370091 R524928

R386851

R377499

R524882

R425717

R370064

R377509

R094042

R094749

R386869

R524941

R377530

R370939

R370087

R369591

R370085
R425730

R370945

R536433

R377521

R386859

R370080

R079982

R377511

R386842

R377506

R374120

R386860
R456322

R386878

R370093

R377504

R080020

R386852

R386870

R425729

R377502
R536461

R524886

R377522

R370084 R524903

R456320

R386834

R370070

R524927

R386893

R386861

R386892

R370106 R425721

R374115

R377514

R386853

R536434

R377520

R524877

R386858

R524862

R425731

R370071

R536449

R524864
R370102

R386848

R386891

R370089

R456305
R456303

R386890

R536425R536442

R370103

R370940

R456286

R425725

R377510
R524883

R386871

R425716

R386854

R386849

R425728

R456321

R370059

R536457

R094517

R524931

R377500

R370095

R536403

R370092

R386862

R536424

R377516

R524932

R386883

R374118

R386889

R524940

R536443

R524904

R370061

R456282

R377554

R377496

R080046

R386857 R536427

R524897
R377527

R456342

R536354

R536467

R456293

R536381

R536426

R536391

R536466
R386902

R377503

R456330

R536469

R536440

R456304

R456338

R524916

R456294

R536415
R536441

R377531

R456329

R536428

R370101

R370063

R377535

R524869

R370098
R370052

R370076

R536452

R524917

R536429
R456339

R370086

R370099

R035592

R370075

R524894

R374116

R370051

R386884

R386863

R370050

R035508

R524881

R524930

R524873R425727

R370049

R524896

R370096
R370055

R386887

R374117

R370058
R370056

R080028

R370054
R524942

R080022

R536430

R374119

R370053

R524872

R370073

R370060
R370083

R524887

R536439

R377512

R425722

R386843

R536406R080052

R536409

R524865

R386844
R456275

R524874

R536423
R536448

R524924
R524923

R524925

R386847

R536422

R080026

R386845 R536462

R035597

R094036

R080050

R425723

R094033

R536471R536470

R536419

R377534

R536410

R536445

R080062

R524893

R524880

R524933

R536437

R524934

R536447
R536421
R536420

R524878

R524935

R370065

R536355

R536411

R080060

R524866

R536432
R080048

R425724

R524937

R536444

R524895

R080070
R080024

R524891

R524867

R524938

R536404

R524911

R094040 R536358

R386873

R002388

R386901

R536402

R524909

R456333

R370067

R524871

R524908 R524913

R456292

R524915

R536414

R386866

R536405

R456291

R386898

R386840

R456327

R080064

R456331
R456341

R080066

R386865

R536390
R536382 R536387

R536388
R536386R536389

R536465

R524870
R524918

R456276

R524920

R456324

R536418

R456328

R456289

R456277

R386897

R080072

R456280

R386868

R456290

R080074

R456296
R377532

R456298R456295

R377518

R002391

R386875

R377546

R035464

R080054

R377547
R377539

R377544

R377523

R377552

R080068

R377540
R386881

R536392

R374114

R002397

R536399

R002424

R094055

R035475

R079910

R094017

R035465

R094150R094142
R094149
R080041

R094053
R080040

R094019

R080032

R094028

S BAGDAD RD

LOS VISTA DR

BONITA VERDE DR

±

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

Public Notification Boundary
Subject Property
WCAD
City Limits

0 200

Feet

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.

CITY MAPCITY MAPË

ZONING CASE 15-Z-010

Attachment #6
Notification Map
1605 & 1607 Tierra Alto



EXHIBIT A 
Trails at Leander - PUD 

 
A. Purpose and Intent 

The Trails at Leander PUD is composed of approximately 51.83 acres, as shown in EXHIBIT 
C (field notes). The contents of this PUD further explain and illustrate the overall appearance 
and function desired for this community. A Conceptual Site Layout and Land Use Plan 
(EXHIBIT B) has been attached to this PUD to illustrate the design intent for the property 
and is intended to serve as a guide to illustrate the general community vision and design 
concepts.  It is not intended to serve as a final document. The Site Layout Plan depicts the 
residential products and open space areas that are contemplated within the community. 

 
B. Applicability and Base Zoning 

All aspects regarding the development of this PUD shall comply with the City of Leander 
Composite Zoning Ordinance, except as established in EXHIBIT A.  

 
For the purpose of establishing development standards for the PUD, base zoning of Multi-
Family (MF-2-A) has been selected from the Leander Composite Zoning Ordinance for the 
single-family residential products proposed within the PUD.   
 
This PUD allows the flexibility to develop this unique project for smaller single family 
residential products and further define the various design and development elements 
effectively and efficiently.  In the case that this PUD does not address a specific City 
requirement, the Leander Composite Zoning Ordinance shall apply. In the event of a conflict 
between this PUD and the base zoning district found in the Leander Composite Zoning 
Ordinance, this PUD shall control. 

 
C. CONCEPTUAL SITE LAYOUT AND LAND USE PLAN 

EXHIBIT C attached is a conceptual development plan intended to visually convey the 
design intent for the Trails at Leander community.  The design of the community is not final, 
and is subject to refinement during the platting and site planning stages.  This PUD zoning 
document does not constitute the plat or site plan approval of the attached plan. 
 

D. ALLOWABLE USE 
The use will be detached single-family dwellings.  The maximum dwelling count shall be 
220 units.   
 

E. LOT DESIGN STANDARDS 
The Trails at Leander development will comply with the Development Standards set forth in 
Table 1 for a condo regime site plan on private drives.  The following standards measure the 
setback from the drive. 
 

  

1 
 



EXHIBIT A 
Trails at Leander - PUD 

 
Table 1 – Development Standards 

 
 MF-2-A 

DETACHED DWELLINGS 

Front Setback 
(minimum from back of curb) 15 ft. Min 

Side Setback (minimum from back 
of curb) 10 ft. Min 

Building Setback 
(minimum setback between 
buildings) 

10 ft. Min 

Rear Setback 
(minimum) 20 ft. Min 

Perimeter Setback 20 ft. Min * 

Building Separation 
(minimum) 10 ft. Min ** 

Building Height 30 ft Max 

*Patios, decks and similar improvements shall have a minimum separate of 10 feet 
from all adjacent buildings. 
**Eave overhang is not included in calculations for minimum building separation.  A 
minimum of seven feet clear zone between building roof lines will be provided.   
 

F. DRIVE DESIGN 
The Trails at Leander community shall incorporate the following drive standards. 
1. The minimum driveway cross section of vehicular access within the PUD is 26 feet of 

pavement with a minimum 6 inch standing concrete curb on each side.  Driveway 
alignment, as well as building pad and driveway island locations may vary to 
minimize disturbance to significant existing trees and natural topographic features.   

2. The project shall be gated with provisions for a passenger vehicle turnaround outside 
of the gate at the main entrance on Bagdad Road.  

3. Street lights will not be required but are permitted.  Street light(s) will be provided at 
all PUD entrances from and exits to public roadways. 

4. Sidewalks or trails are required within 200 feet of all units.  Sidewalk and trails are 
required as shown on the City of Leander Transportation Plan including the 
connection of sidewalk along Bagdad and the Mason Creek Trail.  All sidewalks and 
trails shall be concrete.     

  

2 
 



EXHIBIT A 
Trails at Leander - PUD 

 
G. ARCHITECTURAL AND PARKING REQUIREMENTS 

All residential product within this project shall comply with the applicable standards of 
the Type A Architectural Components and the Architectural Standards for single-family 
districts as listed in Article VII and Article VIII of the Composite Zoning Ordinance 
unless modified herein.  Drives shall constitute streets with regard to this application of 
the ordinance. 

1. Each dwelling shall have a minimum of 1,300 square feet of living area and a 
maximum of 3,500 square feet. 

2. All dwellings shall be detached. 
3. PARKING:  A minimum of two garage-enclosed parking spaces and two additional 

off-street parking spaces (the garage driveway may be counted toward the provision 
of off-street parking) shall be provided per unit with three or more bedrooms. 

4. Dwelling units with three or more bedrooms and lots having an accessory dwelling:  
A minimum of two garage-enclosed parking spaces and two additional off-street 
parking spaces (driveway may be counted toward provision of off-street parking) 
shall be provided.   

5. Dwelling units with two or fewer bedrooms:  A minimum of one garage-enclosed 
parking space and two additional off-street parking spaces (driveway may be counted 
toward provision of off-street parking) shall be provided.   

6. Garages shall comply with Article VIII of the Composite Zoning Ordinance. 
 

H. FENCING AND LANDSCAPING 
1. This project shall comply with the applicable Landscape Requirements for single-

family districts as listed in Article VI of the Composite Zoning Ordinance.  In 
addition, this project shall comply with the multi-family provisions regarding Tree 
Preservation and Protection. 

2. Pond fences, if constructed, shall be wrought iron or decorative tubular metal.   
3. All invasive species shall be removed. 

 
I. AMENITIES 

1. A covered pavilion or patio, pool and clubhouse shall be provided for residents.  
Walking trails shall be installed at various locations throughout the community.   
 

J. RIPARIAN BUFFER AND PONDS 
1. Storm water pond grading, mass retaining walls and mass grading are allowed in the 

riparian buffer (Section 49 of the Subdivision Ordinance) at least 5 feet from a 
defined creek bank.  Native central Texas riparian plants will be installed in the 
riparian buffer to help improve water quality and habitat and to limit maintenance.  
Buffer averaging may be used.  Total proposed buffer must be equal to or greater than 
original buffer.       

2. An additional two 2-caliper inch trees and four 1 gallon shrubs per 600 sq. ft of the 
pond area is required as additional landscaping on the site.  Pond area is defined as 
the area inundated with storm water at the elevation of the top of the pond outlet 
structure weir.   

3 
 



EXHIBIT A 
Trails at Leander - PUD 

 
3. Ponds may be installed in the Riparian Buffer.  Above ground structural stabilization 

shall be limited to the use of native stone (except for the outlet structures) and shall be 
minimized in locations where it is visible from adjacent developments.   

4. A landscape plan showing the riparian corridor restoration will be required at the site 
development stage.   

5. Ponds will meet the current ordinance requirement regarding perimeter walls for the 
aggregate of the four ponds and no pond may exceed 50% perimeter walls.   

 

4 
 





rstover
Text Box
ATTACHMENT 8





Amending Ordinance 05-018-00 

ORDINANCE NO #  
 

ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS, AMENDING THE 
ZONING ORDINANCE BY REZONING TWO PARCELS OF LAND 
FROM MF-2-B (MULTI-FAMILY) AND GC-3-C (GENERAL 
COMMERCIAL) TO PUD (PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT); 
MAKING FINDINGS OF FACT; AND PROVIDING FOR RELATED 
MATTERS.  

 
 Whereas, the owner of the property described herein after (the "Property") has requested 
that the Property be rezoned;  
 
 Whereas, after giving at least ten days written notice to the owners of land within two 
hundred feet of the Property, the Planning & Zoning Commission held a public hearing on the 
proposed rezoning and forwarded its recommendation on the rezoning to the City Council; 
   
 Whereas, after publishing notice of the public hearing at least fifteen days prior to the date 
of such hearing, the City Council at a public hearing has reviewed the request and the circumstances 
of the Property and finds that a substantial change in circumstances of the Property, sufficient to 
warrant a change in the zoning of the Property, has transpired; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF LEANDER, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
Section 1.  Findings.  The foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and correct and are hereby 
adopted by the City Council and made a part hereof for all purposes as findings of fact. 
 
Section 2.  Amendment of Zoning Ordinance.  Ordinance No. 05-018, as amended, the City of 
Leander Composite Zoning Ordinance (the "Zoning Ordinance" or "Code"), is hereby modified and 
amended by rezoning the Property as set forth in Section 3. 
 
Section 3. Applicability. This ordinance applies to the following parcels of land, which is herein 
referred to as the “Property:”  That certain parcels of land being 51.84 acres, more or less, located in 
Leander, Williamson County, Texas, being more particularly described in Exhibit “B”, generally 
located approximately 1,200 feet to the south of the intersection of Bagdad Road and Sonny 
Drive on the east side of Bagdad Road; legally described as 51.84 acres more or less out of the E. 
D. Harmon Survey, Abstract No. 6 more particularly described in Document Number 2015001258 
Official Public Records of Williamson County, Texas, and identified by tax identification number 
R031330 and R031331.  
 
Section 4.  Property Rezoned.  The Zoning Ordinance is hereby amended by changing the zoning 
district for the Property from MF-2- (Multi-Family) and GC-3-C (General Commercial) to PUD 
(Planned Unit Development) known as the Trails of Leander PUD.  The PUD shall be developed 
and occupied in accordance with this Ordinance, the PUD plan attached as Exhibits “A”, “B”, 
and “C”, which are hereby adopted and incorporated herein for all purposes, and the Composite 
Zoning Ordinance to the extent not amended by this Ordinance.  In the event of a conflict 
between the Composite Zoning Ordinance and the requirements for the Property set forth in this 



Amending Ordinance 05-018-00 

Ordinance, this Ordinance shall control.   
 
Section 5. Recording Zoning Change. The City Council directs the City Secretary to record this 
zoning classification on the City’s official zoning map with the official notation as prescribed by 
the City’s zoning ordinance. 
 
Section 6.  Severability.  Should any section or part of this ordinance be held unconstitutional, 
illegal, or invalid, or the application to any person or circumstance for any reasons thereof 
ineffective or inapplicable, such unconstitutionality, illegality, invalidity, or ineffectiveness of such 
section or part shall in no way affect, impair or invalidate the remaining portion or portions thereof; 
but as to such remaining portion or portions, the same shall be and remain in full force and effect 
and to this end the provisions of this ordinance are declared to be severable. 
 
Section 7.  Open Meetings.  That it is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at 
which this ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapt. 551, 
Loc. Gov't. Code. 
 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading this the 3rd day of December, 2015. 
 FINALLY PASSED AND APPROVED on this the 17th day of December, 2015. 
 
 
THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS ATTEST: 
 
 
 
__________________________________ _____________________________ 
Christopher Fielder, Mayor     Debbie Haile, City Secretary 
 



EXHIBIT A 
Trails at Leander - PUD 

 
A. Purpose and Intent 

The Trails at Leander PUD is composed of approximately 51.83 acres, as shown in EXHIBIT 
C (field notes). The contents of this PUD further explain and illustrate the overall appearance 
and function desired for this community. A Conceptual Site Layout and Land Use Plan 
(EXHIBIT B) has been attached to this PUD to illustrate the design intent for the property 
and is intended to serve as a guide to illustrate the general community vision and design 
concepts.  It is not intended to serve as a final document. The Site Layout Plan depicts the 
residential products and open space areas that are contemplated within the community. 

 
B. Applicability and Base Zoning 

All aspects regarding the development of this PUD shall comply with the City of Leander 
Composite Zoning Ordinance, except as established in EXHIBIT A.  

 
For the purpose of establishing development standards for the PUD, base zoning of Multi-
Family (MF-2-A) has been selected from the Leander Composite Zoning Ordinance for the 
single-family residential products proposed within the PUD.   
 
This PUD allows the flexibility to develop this unique project for smaller single family 
residential products and further define the various design and development elements 
effectively and efficiently.  In the case that this PUD does not address a specific City 
requirement, the Leander Composite Zoning Ordinance shall apply. In the event of a conflict 
between this PUD and the base zoning district found in the Leander Composite Zoning 
Ordinance, this PUD shall control. 

 
C. CONCEPTUAL SITE LAYOUT AND LAND USE PLAN 

EXHIBIT C attached is a conceptual development plan intended to visually convey the 
design intent for the Trails at Leander community.  The design of the community is not final, 
and is subject to refinement during the platting and site planning stages.  This PUD zoning 
document does not constitute the plat or site plan approval of the attached plan. 
 

D. ALLOWABLE USE 
The use will be detached single-family dwellings.  The maximum dwelling count shall be 
220 units.   
 

E. LOT DESIGN STANDARDS 
The Trails at Leander development will comply with the Development Standards set forth in 
Table 1 for a condo regime site plan on private drives.  The following standards measure the 
setback from the drive. 
 

  

1 
 



EXHIBIT A 
Trails at Leander - PUD 

 
Table 1 – Development Standards 

 
 MF-2-A 

DETACHED DWELLINGS 

Front Setback 
(minimum from back of curb) 15 ft. Min 

Side Setback (minimum from back 
of curb) 10 ft. Min 

Building Setback 
(minimum setback between 
buildings) 

10 ft. Min 

Rear Setback 
(minimum) 20 ft. Min 

Perimeter Setback 20 ft. Min * 

Building Separation 
(minimum) 10 ft. Min ** 

Building Height 30 ft Max 

*Patios, decks and similar improvements shall have a minimum separate of 10 feet 
from all adjacent buildings. 
**Eave overhang is not included in calculations for minimum building separation.  A 
minimum of seven feet clear zone between building roof lines will be provided.   
 

F. DRIVE DESIGN 
The Trails at Leander community shall incorporate the following drive standards. 
1. The minimum driveway cross section of vehicular access within the PUD is 26 feet of 

pavement with a minimum 6 inch standing concrete curb on each side.  Driveway 
alignment, as well as building pad and driveway island locations may vary to 
minimize disturbance to significant existing trees and natural topographic features.   

2. The project shall be gated with provisions for a passenger vehicle turnaround outside 
of the gate at the main entrance on Bagdad Road.  

3. Street lights will not be required but are permitted.  Street light(s) will be provided at 
all PUD entrances from and exits to public roadways. 

4. Sidewalks or trails are required within 200 feet of all units.  Sidewalk and trails are 
required as shown on the City of Leander Transportation Plan including the 
connection of sidewalk along Bagdad and the Mason Creek Trail.  All sidewalks and 
trails shall be concrete.     

  

2 
 



EXHIBIT A 
Trails at Leander - PUD 

 
G. ARCHITECTURAL AND PARKING REQUIREMENTS 

All residential product within this project shall comply with the applicable standards of 
the Type A Architectural Components and the Architectural Standards for single-family 
districts as listed in Article VII and Article VIII of the Composite Zoning Ordinance 
unless modified herein.  Drives shall constitute streets with regard to this application of 
the ordinance. 

1. Each dwelling shall have a minimum of 1,300 square feet of living area and a 
maximum of 3,500 square feet. 

2. All dwellings shall be detached. 
3. PARKING:  A minimum of two garage-enclosed parking spaces and two additional 

off-street parking spaces (the garage driveway may be counted toward the provision 
of off-street parking) shall be provided per unit with three or more bedrooms. 

4. Dwelling units with three or more bedrooms and lots having an accessory dwelling:  
A minimum of two garage-enclosed parking spaces and two additional off-street 
parking spaces (driveway may be counted toward provision of off-street parking) 
shall be provided.   

5. Dwelling units with two or fewer bedrooms:  A minimum of one garage-enclosed 
parking space and two additional off-street parking spaces (driveway may be counted 
toward provision of off-street parking) shall be provided.   

6. Garages shall comply with Article VIII of the Composite Zoning Ordinance. 
 

H. FENCING AND LANDSCAPING 
1. This project shall comply with the applicable Landscape Requirements for single-

family districts as listed in Article VI of the Composite Zoning Ordinance.  In 
addition, this project shall comply with the multi-family provisions regarding Tree 
Preservation and Protection. 

2. Pond fences, if constructed, shall be wrought iron or decorative tubular metal.   
3. All invasive species shall be removed. 

 
I. AMENITIES 

1. A covered pavilion or patio, pool and clubhouse shall be provided for residents.  
Walking trails shall be installed at various locations throughout the community.   
 

J. RIPARIAN BUFFER AND PONDS 
1. Storm water pond grading, mass retaining walls and mass grading are allowed in the 

riparian buffer (Section 49 of the Subdivision Ordinance) at least 5 feet from a 
defined creek bank.  Native central Texas riparian plants will be installed in the 
riparian buffer to help improve water quality and habitat and to limit maintenance.  
Buffer averaging may be used.  Total proposed buffer must be equal to or greater than 
original buffer.       

2. An additional two 2-caliper inch trees and four 1 gallon shrubs per 600 sq. ft of the 
pond area is required as additional landscaping on the site.  Pond area is defined as 
the area inundated with storm water at the elevation of the top of the pond outlet 
structure weir.   

3 
 



EXHIBIT A 
Trails at Leander - PUD 

 
3. Ponds may be installed in the Riparian Buffer.  Above ground structural stabilization 

shall be limited to the use of native stone (except for the outlet structures) and shall be 
minimized in locations where it is visible from adjacent developments.   

4. A landscape plan showing the riparian corridor restoration will be required at the site 
development stage.   

5. Ponds will meet the current ordinance requirement regarding perimeter walls for the 
aggregate of the four ponds and no pond may exceed 50% perimeter walls.   

 

4 
 









AGENDA ITEM # 17a 

 
Executive Summary 

 
December 3, 2015 

 
 
Agenda Subject: Development Agreement Case #12-DA-001:  Discussion and 

possible action to approve the fourth amendment to the 
development agreement for the Nameless Valley Ranch (aka 
Travisso) between the City of Leander and Travisso, Ltd for 
2,135.54 acres more or less, generally located to the west of 
Bloody Hollow, abutting FM 1431 on the south and Nameless 
Road, Leander, Williamson County, Texas.  

 
Background: The fourth amendment to the development agreement for the 

Nameless Valley Ranch (aka Travisso) includes: 
1. Amend the concept plan to include revisions to the phasing, 

relocation of the fire station, and adding the 18 acres that were 
previously located in Jonestown; 

2. Parkland dedication and/or fees shall be paid at the time of 
final plat; 

3. Provide for administrative variances associated with field 
adjustments and design of roadways by the City of Leander 
Engineering Department.   

 
Origination: Applicant:  Tim Towell on behalf of TMC Travisso GP, LLC. 
 
Financial  
Consideration: None. 
 
Recommendation: Staff recommends approval of the amendment to the development 

agreement.  
 
Attachments: 1.  Development Agreement 
 2.  Location Exhibit 
  
Prepared By:   Tom Yantis, AICP  
 Assistant City Manager  11/23/2015 
 



 

FOURTH AMENDMENT TO THE 
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

FOR THE NAMELESS VALLEY RANCH 
 

This Fourth Amendment to the Development Agreement-Nameless Valley Ranch 
(this “Fourth Amendment”) is made and entered into as of ___________________, 
2015, by and between the City of Leander, a Texas home-rule municipal corporation 
(the “City”), and Travisso, Ltd., a Texas limited partnership (“Owner”). The City and 
Developer are sometimes referred to herein collectively as the “Parties”.   
 

RECITALS 
 

Whereas, the City and Lookout Partners, L.P. (“Lookout”), a Texas limited 
partnership, and Key-Deer Holdings, L.P. (“Key-Deer”), a Texas limited partnership, 
each acting by their General Partner, Morningside Land & Cattle Company 
(“Morningside”), a Texas limited liability company, entered into the Development 
Agreement-Nameless Valley Ranch, effective as of the May 3, 2012, and that First 
Amendment to the Development Agreement dated as of November 1, 2012; 

 
Whereas, the City, Lookout, and Key-Deer entered into three Facilities 

Agreements, each effective as of July 20, 2012, with each of the following municipal 
utility districts created and operating pursuant to Article XVI, Section 59 of the Texas 
Constitution and Chapters 49 and 54, Water Code:  Travis County Municipal Utility 
District No. 19, Travis County Municipal Utility District No. 20, and Travis County 
Municipal Utility District No. 21 (the “MUDs”); each of which were subsequently 
amended by the First Amendment to the Facilities Agreement, each effective November 
1, 2012;  

 
Whereas, the above-described Facilities Agreements and their subsequent 

amendments are herein referred to as the Facilities Agreements; 
 
Whereas, Taylor Morrison of Texas, Inc., a Texas corporation (“Taylor 

Morrison”) purchased and acquired the Property and the rights, titles and obligations of 
Lookout, Key-Deer and Morningside (hereinafter referred to collectively as the 
“Morningside Parties”) under the Development Agreement, as amended; and on 
December 20, 2012, the City Council authorized and approved the assignment of the 
Development Agreement, as amended, and all the rights, titles and obligations of the 
Morningside Parties pursuant to the Development Agreement, as amended, to Taylor 
Morrison;  

 
Whereas, Owner, an affiliate of Taylor Morrison, purchased and acquired the 

Property and the rights, titles and obligations of Taylor Morrison under the Development 
Agreement, as amended; and on or about May 16, 2013, the City Council authorized 
and approved the assignment of the Development Agreement, as amended, and all the 
rights, titles and obligations of Taylor Morrison pursuant to the Development Agreement, 
as amended, to Owner; 

{W0660989.6} 1 



 

 
Whereas, the City and Owner entered into the Second Amendment to the 

Development Agreement dated May 16, 2013, the Second Addendum to the 
Development Agreement dated November 15, 2013, and the Third Amendment to the 
Development Agreement dated as of April 3, 2014; 

 
Whereas, the Development Agreement-Nameless Valley Ranch, the First 

Amendment, the Second Amendment, the Third Amendment, and the Second 
Addendum are herein referred to, collectively, as the “Agreement”; and 

 
Whereas, the Parties desire to further amend the Agreement to modify the 

location of the Fire Station Site, to make the Agreement consistent with the PUD Zoning 
Ordinance, to recognize that Section 10.07 was amended by the Facilities Agreements, 
to address timing of parkland dedication requirements, and to allow for variances to 
roadway design speed requirements to be granted administratively as provided herein. 

 
AGREEMENT 

 
For and in consideration of the mutual promises, covenants, obligations, and 

benefits described in this Third Amendment the City and Developer hereby contract, 
covenant and agree as follows: 

 
Section 1.  Property.  As contemplated by Section 12.04 of the Development 
Agreement-Nameless Valley Ranch, the Parties hereby add to the Property that certain 
tract of land containing approximately 18.598 acres, more or less, which is described on 
Exhibit A attached to this Fourth Amendment and incorporated herein by reference (the 
“Added Land”).  
 
Section 2.  Concept Plan.  The Parties hereby amend the Concept Plan to include the 
Added Land and to incorporate additional revisions as shown on Exhibit A-1 attached to 
this Fourth Amendment and incorporated herein by reference. Exhibit A-1 attached to 
the Development Agreement is hereby amended, superseded and replaced in its 
entirety by Exhibit A-1 attached to this Fourth Amendment.   
 
Section 3.  Fire Station Site.  The Parties hereby amend the provisions of Section 5.03 
of the Development Agreement and Section 1.01 of the First Amendment relating to the 
location of the Fire Station Site to provide that the Fire Station Site will consist of 
approximately 3.67 acres of land, more or less, being all of Lot 32, Block A, Final Plat of 
Travisso Section One, Phase One, according to the plat recorded as Document Number 
201400009, Official Public Records of Travis County, Texas. All other provisions of 
Section 1.01 of the First Amendment and Section 5.03 of the Development Agreement 
shall remain in full force and effect. The City acknowledges that Owner has (pursuant to 
the deed recorded as Document No. 2015169955 in the Official Public Records of 
Williamson County, Texas) satisfied the Owner’s obligation to convey the Fire Station 
Site to the City. 
 

{W0660989.6} 2 



 

Section 4.  PUD Zoning. The City is enacting Ordinance No. 15-056-00, which amends 
the zoning of the Added Land to planned unit development district.  The definition of 
“PUD Ordinance” in Article I of the Agreement is hereby amended to refer to both: (a) 
Ordinance No. 14-018-00 referenced in the Third Amendment; and (b) Ordinance No. 
15-056-00 referenced above in this Section 4.   Developer agrees to develop the 
Property and the Added Land in compliance with the applicable PUD Ordinance, and in 
the event of a conflict between the Applicable Rules and the PUD Ordinance, the PUD 
Ordinance shall control. 
 
Section 5.  Phasing.  The Parties agree and acknowledge that the dates and other 
information set out on the Concept Plan with respect to phasing (collectively, the 
“Project Phasing Estimates”) are conceptual in nature and are subject to change from 
time to time. As long as the Property is developed in conformance with the PUD 
Ordinance (as amended), Owner can develop and market the Property without regard to 
the Project Phasing Estimates.  
 
Section 6.  Tax Rebates.  The parties acknowledge and agree that Sections 5.01(b) 
and 5.02(a) of the Facilities Agreements amended and replaced Section 10.07 of the 
Agreement in its entirety, so that Tax Rebates are paid to the respective Districts as 
provided in the respective Facilities Agreements.  Therefore, Section 10.07 is hereby 
amended to read as follows: 
 
 Section 10.07.  Reserved. 

 
 

Section 7.  Park Plan and Parkland Dedication.  The parkland that is located within 
the boundaries of property included in a final plat application, as generally identified in 
the approved Parks Plan attached as Exhibit D to the Development Agreement, will be 
dedicated to the City, or fees in lieu of parkland, as applicable and determined by the 
City shall be paid at the time of final plat approval, as final plats are approved from time 
to time.   The parkland dedication, or fee-in-lieu of parkland dedication, as applicable 
and determined by the City, shall adhere to the intent of the approved Park Plan. The 
Parties agree that the dates and other information set out on the Park Plan with 
respecting to phasing (collectively, the “Park Phasing Estimates”) are conceptual in 
nature and are subject to change. As long as Owner complies with the PUD Ordinance, 
(as amended) and the requirements set out above in this Section 7, Owner will be 
allowed to proceed with the development and marketing of the Property without regard 
to the Park Phasing Estimates.  
 
Section 8.  Administrative Approval of Certain Variances.  Section 3.08(d) of the 
Development Agreement is hereby amended in its entirety to read as follows: 
 

(d) Future Subdivision Variances.  Future variances to the requirements of the 
City’s Subdivision Ordinance and any other applicable ordinances may be 
approved as follows: (i) by the Planning Commission when it approves a 
Preliminary Plat of a tract, phase or section of a subdivision, provided each such 

{W0660989.6} 3 



 

variance is defined and recorded on the approved Preliminary Plat; (ii) minor 
alternatives, regarding the construction of roadways, that are reasonably 
necessary and not inconsistent with the Applicable Requirements may be 
granted during construction as provided in Section 8.01 (the “Field Adjustments”); 
and (iii) variances from roadway design speeds that are determined to be 
reasonably necessary due to topography may be granted as provided in Section 
8.01 (the “Design Variances”).  A waiver approved for a section or phase of a 
subdivision pursuant (a) above, and an alternative storm water plan approved 
pursuant to (b) above, shall run with the land after final plat approval of the phase 
or section of the subdivision.  Variances granted for a Preliminary Plat shall 
remain in effect and run with the land included in the Preliminary Plat if a Final 
Plat is approved and recorded for that tract, phase or section prior to expiration of 
the Preliminary Plat.  If a Preliminary Plat expires any Variances approved for 
that Preliminary Plat shall terminate and expire.  Field Adjustments and Design 
Variances may be approved administratively by the engineering department of 
the City and shall be and remain in effect from and after City acceptance of the 
roadway. 

 
Section 9.  Roadway Variances.  Section 8.01(a) of the Development Agreement is 
hereby amended in its entirety to read as follows: 
 

(a)  Variances and Waivers.  Variances shall consist of the Variances granted 
pursuant to Section 3.08.  Appropriate variances that relate to the design and 
construction of proposed roadway facilities may be approved by the Planning 
Commission as provided in Subsection 3.08(d).  The City Engineer and the 
Director of Development Services may approve Field Adjustments and Design 
Variances as provided in Subsection 3.08(d).  Field Adjustments may not be 
approved if they conflict with the Applicable Requirements, good engineering 
practices, or will restrict traffic flow, present a danger to public health, property, 
safety or welfare, or increase maintenance expense.  Design Variances may be 
not be approved if they conflict with good engineering practices, will materially 
restrict traffic flow, present a material danger to public health, property, safety or 
welfare, or materially increase maintenance expense. 

 
Section 10.  Capitalized Terms.  Capitalized terms that appear in this Fourth 
Amendment shall be defined as set forth herein.  If no definition is set forth herein, such 
capitalized terms shall be defined as set forth in the Agreement. 
 
Section 11.  Entire Agreement.  This Fourth Amendment, together with the 
Agreement, sets forth the entire understanding of the parties and supersedes all prior 
agreements and understandings, whether written or oral, with respect to the subject 
matter hereof. 
 
Section 12.  Binding Effect.  This Fourth Amendment will extend to and be binding 
upon and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto their respective successors and 
permitted assigns. 

{W0660989.6} 4 



 

 
Section 13. Effect of Amendment.  The parties agree that, except as modified 
hereby, the Agreement remains valid, binding, and in full force and effect.  If there is any 
conflict or inconsistency between this Fourth Amendment and the Agreement, this 
Fourth Amendment will control and modify the Agreement. 
 
Section 14. Counterparts.  This Fourth Amendment may be executed in any number 
of counterparts, including, without limitation, facsimile counterparts, with the same effect 
as if the parties had signed the same document, and all counterparts will constitute one 
and the same agreement. 
 
 

 
 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 
 

{W0660989.6} 5 



 

 
 
In Witness Whereof, this instrument is executed and in effect as of ___________ 
_____, 2015. 
 
 
       City of Leander 
 
 
Attest: 
       By: ___________________ 
       Name: Kent Cagle 
________________________   Title:   City Manager 
Debbie Haile, City Secretary 
 
 
 
THE STATE OF TEXAS  § 
     § 
COUNTY OF WILLIAMSON § 
 
This instrument was acknowledged before me on this the          day of                  , 2015, 
by Kent Cagle, City Manager, City of Leander, Texas, on behalf of the City.                                                            
      
       ________________________________ 
       NOTARY PUBLIC, State of Texas 
 

{W0660989.6} 6 



 

 
 
        
       TRAVISSO, LTD., 
       a Texas limited partnership 
 
       By: TMC TRAVISSO GP, LLC,  
       a Texas limited liability company,  
       its general partner 
 
 
 
       By:       

       Name:       

       Title:  Vice President 

 
 
THE STATE OF TEXAS  § 
     § 
COUNTY OF TRAVIS  § 
 
This instrument was acknowledged before me on this the        day of                  , 2015, 
by                                               as Vice President of TMC Travisso GP, LLC, a Texas 
limited liability company, general partner of Travisso, Ltd., a Texas limited partnership, 
on behalf of said limited liability company and limited partnership. 
 
 
                                                                           

NOTARY PUBLIC, State of Texas 
 

{W0660989.6} 7 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

{W0660989.6} A-2 
 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

{W0660989.6} A-3 
 



 

Exhibit A-1 
 

Amended Concept Plan 
 

{W0660989.6} A-1-1 
 






IN THE CITY OF LEANDER, TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS

J

A

EC

O

Location Map

Scale: 1" = 4,000'

J

A

EC

O

5 FOOT CONTOURS

Date: 11-11-15

OWNERS:

Travisso, Ltd.

11200 Lakeline Blvd., Suite 150 A

Austin, Texas 78717

Phone: (512) 328-8866

Fax: (512) 328-7988

ENGINEER:

Jay Engineering Co., Inc.

Texas Registered Engineering Firm F-4780

P.O. Box 1220

Leander, Texas 78646-1220

Phone: (512) 259-3882

Fax: (512) 259-8016

SURVEYOR:

G & R Surveying, LLC

1805 Ouida Drive

Austin, Texas 78728

Phone: (512) 267-7430

Fax: (512) 836-8385


 





 
































  























  



  




























1 2014-2015 191.15 225 30 258 18.0 12.0 5.6 30.4 3.5

2 2016-2017 410.09 601 139 671 34.2 23.4

3 2018-2019 491.14 698 20 748 19.2

4 2020-2021 517.89 783 46 800 105.4 16.4

5 2022-2023 525.27 610 100 650 9.2 11.8

TOTAL RESIDENTIAL  LUE's = 2,917

TOTAL NON-RESIDENTIAL LUE's = 335

PHASE 1




R

M

 

1

4

3

1



100' P.E.C.

Transmission Line Easement

Vol. 7447 Pg. 596 D.R.T.C.

R

M

 

1

4

3

1

F

M

 

2

2

4

3

N

A

M

E

L

E

S

S

 

R

D

.

bluffs

grand mesa

grand mesa




























PHASE 5




PHASE 2




PHASE 4




PHASE 3




PHASE 5




PHASE 5







(

R

e

s

i
d

e

n

t

i
a

l
)

PHASE 1

Comm =

30.4 Ac.

Fire Sta =

3.5 Ac.

Park =

5.6 Ac.

WRP

POND =

9.98 Ac.

WRP =

1.65 Ac.

















School =

23.4 Ac.

Amenity Cntr. =

10.0 Ac.

School =

16.4 Ac.

Community

Park =

3.4 Ac.

Community

Park =

54.9 Ac.

Park =

26.0 Ac. Trail Park =

3.4 Ac.

Power Line

Parks =

18.9 Ac.

Pocket

Park =

2.5 Ac.

Note:

Project phasing is conceptual in nature & subject to change from time to time. As long as

the property is developed in conformance with the PUD Ordinance (as amended), owner

can develop & market the property without regard to the project phasing estimates.

Comm =

11.8 Ac.

bluffs

bluffs

Power Line

Park =

4.6 Ac.

Pocket

Parks =

4.8 Ac.

Pocket

Park =

1.2 Ac.

Park =

13.8 Ac.

Trail Park =

0.3 Ac.

Trail Park =

24.2 Ac.

Sh. 1

of 2





HAWKESLANDING, PH 1

NORTH CREEKSEC 2

BAGDAD
CEMETERY

BAGDADMEADOWS

WESTWOOD

CARNEROSSUBDI VI SION
WESTVIEWMEADOWS

WESTVIEWMEADOWSSEC 4

WESTVIEWMEADOWS

OLD TOWNVILLAGE,SEC 3

MAGNOLIA CREEK

MASONCREEKNORTH,SEC 2

MASONCREEKNORTH,SEC 1

MASON CREEK.SEC 1

MASON CREEK.SEC 2

MASON CREEK.SEC 3

MASON CREEK.SEC 4

MASON CREEK.SEC 5

FALCON OAKS,SEC 1FALCON OAKS,SEC 2FALCON OAKS,SEC 3

FALCON OAKS,SEC 4

BLEDSOE
PARK

VISTA RIDGE,PH 3

VISTA RIDGE,PH 1
VISTA RIDGE,PH 4

GRAND MESA
AT CRYSTAL FALLS

GRAND MESA
AT CRYSTAL FALLS,

SEC 6

GRAND MESA
AT CRYSTAL FALLS,

SEC 5

FAIRWAYS
AT CRYSTAL FALLS

BLUFFS
AT CRYSTAL FALLS,

SEC 1

CRYSTAL FALLS
GOLF COURSE

HIGHLANDS
AT CRYSTAL FALLS,

SEC 2

HIGHLANDS
AT CRYSTAL FALLS,

SEC 1

FAIRWAYS
AT CRYSTAL FALLSSEC 1

WHITESTONE
ESCAPROCK AT CRYSTALFALLS, SEC 1

WI NKLEY
ES

BOULDERS AT
CRYSTAL FALLS,PH II

BOULDERS AT
CRYSTAL FALLS,PH V

BOULDERS AT
CRYSTAL FALLS,PH IIIWOODS AT 

CRYSTAL FALLS, SEC 1

LION ACRES

LEANDER
PUBLIC

LIBRARY

MASON
CREEK
PARK

MASON
HOMESTEAD

FAIRWAYS
AT CRYSTAL FALLSSEC 2

BLUFFS
AT CRYSTAL FALLS,

SEC 1

GRAND MESA
AT CRYSTAL FALLS,

SEC 2

GRAND MESA
AT CRYSTAL FALLS,

SEC 4

GRAND MESA
AT CRYSTAL FALLS,

SEC 3

VILLAS ATVISTA RIDGE

BOULDERS AT
CRYSTAL FALLS,PH IV

TRAVISSOSEC 1

VISTA RIDGE,PH 2A

CAMACHO
ES

MASON RANCH, PH 1

MASON RANCH, PH 2

GRAND MESA
AT CRYSTAL FALLS,

SEC 7

GRAND MESA
AT CRYSTAL FALLS,

SEC 8

FM 1431 RD

NAMELESS RD

N LAKELINE BLVDPALOS VERDES

OLD 2243 WEST

DRVW

OSAGE DR

GOOD NIGHT TRL

ZO
A D

R

CRYSTAL FALLS PKWY

EL
 C

IE
LO

MIRA VISTA

N RIM DR

WOODALL DR

W WHITESTONE BLVD

LIO
NS

 LA
IR

WHE
AT

ON
 TR

L

SPYGLASS HILL

LA
JIT

AS

VENEZIA VW

BA
RN

ET
T D

R

CR 290

RA
N 

RD

DREAM CATCHER DR

AMBUSH CANYON

AM
BL

IN
G 

TR
LRIMSTONE DR

NAN LN

N 
RI

DG
E 

CI
R

COTTONTAIL DR

VISTA ROCK DR

ROARING FORK

LONG BOW DR

MESA OAKS

HIG
H 

LO
NE

SO
ME

LEGEND TRL

MEDICINE HAT

FIRST VIEW

OS
PR

EY
 D

R

HOMECOMING

INDIAN CHIEF DR

SHADY MOUNTAIN RD

BU
CK

 R
UN

W NEW HOPE DR

MIRADOR

CANYON VW
TR

AILS
 END RD

BROWN BLUFF CIR

LAUREN LOOP

FLAT IRON CT

RI
M 

RO
CK

 D
R

BEAR CLAW

VENTANA CANYON

CA
ME

LB
AC

K

WHITETAIL PASS

LEGEND HILL DR

HE
DD

ER
 C

IR

FA
IR

W
EA

TH
ER

 W
AY

FOXBORO LN

YUMA TRL

N RIM DR

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

± 0 1,000

Feet

Nameless Valley Ranch 
Development Agreement Amendment

Attachment #2
Location Exhibit

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits
Extra-Territorial Jurisdiction



AGENDA ITEM # 17b 

 
Executive Summary 

 
December 10, 2015 

 
 
Agenda Subject: Development Agreement Case #12-DA-001:  Discussion and 

possible action to approve the second amendment to the facilities 
agreement and adopt an ordinance consenting to the addition of 
land to Travis County Municipal Utility District No. 21 (MUD 
#21) between the City of Leander and Travisso, Ltd for 18.598 
acres more or less, located to the northwest of the intersection of 
RM 1431 & Travisso Pkwy, Leander, Williamson County, Texas.  

 
Background: The developer wishes to add 18.598 acres into the district and to 

the facilities agreement.  This tract was released from Jonestown to 
Leander.  The agreement provides for the city to consent for the 
annexation of the land into the district and inclusion of the land 
into the facilities agreement. 

 
Origination: Applicant:  Tim Towell on behalf of TMC Travisso GP, LLC. 
 
Financial  
Consideration: None. 
 
Recommendation: Staff recommends approval of the amendment to the facilities 

agreement and ordinance adoption.  
 
Attachments: 1.  Facilities Agreement and Consent Ordinance 
 2.  Location Exhibit 
  
Prepared By:   Tom Yantis, AICP  
 Assistant City Manager  11/23/2015 
 



 

SECOND AMENDMENT TO THE 
FACILITIES AGREEMENT 

(TRAVIS COUNTY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 21) 
 

This Second Amendment to the Facilities Agreement (Municipal Utility District 
No. 21) is made and entered into as of ___________________, 2015, by and between 
the City of Leander, a Texas home-rule municipal corporation (the “City”), Travisso, 
Ltd., a Texas limited partnership (“Owner”), and Travis County Municipal Utility 
District No. 21, a municipal utility district created and operating pursuant to Article XVI, 
Section 59 of the Texas Constitution and Chapters 49 and 54, Water Code (the 
“District”). The City and Developer are sometimes referred to herein collectively as the 
“Parties”.   
 

RECITALS 
 

Whereas, the City, Lookout, and Key-Deer entered into a Facilities Agreements, 
effective as of July 20, 2012, with Travis County Municipal Utility District No. 21 (the 
“Travis County MUD No. 21 Facilities Agreement”), which was subsequently 
amended by the First Amendment to the Facilities Agreement, effective November 1, 
2012 (the (“First Amendment“);  

 
Whereas, the Travis County MUD No. 21 Facilities Agreement and the First 

Amendment are collectively referred to as the Facilities Agreement; 
 

Whereas, Taylor Morrison of Texas, Inc., a Texas corporation (“Taylor 
Morrison”) purchased and acquired the Property and the rights, titles and obligations of 
Lookout, Key-Deer and Morningside (hereinafter referred to collectively as the 
“Morningside Parties”) under the Development Agreement, as amended; and on 
December 20, 2012, the City Council authorized and approved the assignment of the 
Development Agreement, as amended, and all the rights, titles and obligations of the 
Morningside Parties pursuant to the Development Agreement, as amended, to Taylor 
Morrison;  

 
Whereas, Owner, an affiliate of Taylor Morrison, purchased and acquired the 

Property and the rights, titles and obligations of Taylor Morrison under the Development 
Agreement, as amended; and on or about May 16, 2013, the City Council authorized 
and approved the assignment of the Development Agreement, as amended, and all the 
rights, titles and obligations of Taylor Morrison pursuant to the Development Agreement, 
as amended, to Owner; and 

 
Whereas, the Owner acquired the Added Land described in Exhibit A attached 

hereto and incorporated herein for all purposes, and desires to add the Added Land to 
the District and to the Facilities Agreement; and 

 
Whereas, the City and the Owner amended the Development Agreement to add 

the Added Land to the Development Agreement; 

{W0660989.6} 1 



 

 
 

AGREEMENT 
 

For and in consideration of the mutual promises, covenants, obligations, and 
benefits described in this Second Amendment the City and Developer hereby contract, 
covenant and agree as follows: 
 
Section 1.  Property.  The definition of Property set forth in Article I of the Travis 
County MUD No. 21 Facilities Agreement shall be revised to include the Added Land, 
and the Added Land shall be subject to the terms and conditions of the Facilities 
Agreement after its annexation into the District. 
 
Section 2.  Annexation of the Added Land.  The District and the Owner hereby 
consents to and acknowledges that the Added Land is located in the City’s city limits, 
and agrees not to challenge the inclusion of the Added Land into the City’s city limits.  
The City hereby consents to the annexation of the Added Land into Travis County 
Municipal Utility District Number 21 (the “District”), notwithstanding any requirement of 
written notice by the District pursuant to that certain Facilities Agreement between the 
District, the City, and the prior owners of Travisso dated July 20, 2012, as amended (the 
“Facilities Agreement”); provided that the District will send the City a copy of the District 
resolution or order annexing the Added Land into the District within thirty (30) days after 
annexation of the Added Land into the District.  As evidence of the consent given 
herein, the City agrees to take all necessary and appropriate steps to adopt an 
ordinance in substantially the same form as provided in Exhibit B attached hereto.   
 
Section 3.  Binding Effect.  This Second Amendment will extend to and be binding 
upon and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto their respective successors and 
permitted assigns. 
 
Section 4. Effect of Amendment.  The parties agree that, except as modified 
hereby, the Agreement remains valid, binding, and in full force and effect.  If there is any 
conflict or inconsistency between this Second Amendment and the Agreement, this 
Second Amendment will control and modify the Agreement. 
 
Section 5. Counterparts.  This Second Amendment may be executed in any number 
of counterparts, including, without limitation, facsimile counterparts, with the same effect 
as if the parties had signed the same document, and all counterparts will constitute one 
and the same agreement. 
 
 

 
 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 

{W0660989.6} 2 



 

In Witness Whereof, this instrument is executed and in effect as of ___________ 
_____, 2015. 
 
 
       City of Leander 
 
 
Attest: 
       By: ___________________ 
       Name: Kent Cagle 
________________________   Title:   City Manager 
Debbie Haile, City Secretary 
 
 
 
THE STATE OF TEXAS  § 
     § 
COUNTY OF WILLIAMSON § 
 
This instrument was acknowledged before me on this the          day of                  , 2015, 
by Kent Cagle, City Manager, City of Leander, Texas, on behalf of the City.                                                            
      
       ________________________________ 
       NOTARY PUBLIC, State of Texas 
 

{W0660989.6} 3 



 

 
 
        
       TRAVISSO, LTD., 
       a Texas limited partnership 
 
       By: TMC TRAVISSO GP, LLC,  
       a Texas limited liability company,  
       its general partner 
 
 
 
       By:       

       Name:       

       Title:  Vice President 

 
 
THE STATE OF TEXAS  § 
     § 
COUNTY OF TRAVIS  § 
 
This instrument was acknowledged before me on this the        day of                  , 2015, 
by                                               as Vice President of TMC Travisso GP, LLC, a Texas 
limited liability company, general partner of Travisso, Ltd., a Texas limited partnership, 
on behalf of said limited liability company and limited partnership. 
 
 
                                                                           

NOTARY PUBLIC, State of Texas 
 

  

{W0660989.6} 4 



 

      TRAVIS COUNTY MUNICIPAL UTILITY  
DISTRICT NO. 21 
 
 
By:_____________________________ 

      Name:       

      Title:  President 

 
Attest: 
        
        
________________________    
Name:__________________ 
Title:_____________________ 
 
 
 
THE STATE OF TEXAS  § 
     § 
COUNTY OF TRAVIS  § 
 
This instrument was acknowledged before me on this the        day of                  , 2015, 
by                                               as President of the Travis County Municipal District No. 
21 on behalf of said entity. 
 
 
                                                                           

NOTARY PUBLIC, State of Texas 

{W0660989.6} 5 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

{W0660989.6} A-2 
 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

{W0660989.6} A-3 
 



 

Exhibit A-1 
 

Amended Concept Plan 
 

{W0660989.6} A-1-1 
 



EXHIBIT B 
 

CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS 
 

ORDINANCE NO. ______________ 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS, CONSENTING TO THE 
ADDITION OF LAND TO TRAVIS COUNTY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 
21; CONTAINING A SAVINGS CLAUSE; REPEALING ALL ORDINANCES IN 
CONFLICT THEREWITH; AND TO BECOME EFFECTIVE UPON ITS PASSAGE AND 
APPROVAL 
 
 WHEREAS, Section 54.016(a), Water Code, provides that no land within the 
corporate limits of a city shall be included in a district unless the city grants its written 
consent, by resolution or ordinance, to the inclusion of the land within the district in 
accordance with Section 54.016, Water Code; 
 
 WHEREAS, Travis County Municipal Utility District No. 21 (the “District”) 
desires to annex a certain 18.598-acre tract of land (the “Land”) more fully described by 
field notes attached hereto as Exhibit “A”; and 
 
 WHEREAS, all of the Land is currently located within the corporate limits of the 
City. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF LEANDER, TEXAS: 
 
 SECTION 1. That the City Council of the City hereby grants its consent to the 
addition of the Land to the District pursuant to Article XVI, Section 59 of the Texas 
Constitution. 
 
 SECTION 2.  That as a condition of the consent given by the City pursuant to this 
Ordinance, the District shall be subject to all the terms and provisions of City Ordinance 
No. 12-034-00, the Ordinance consenting to the creation of and inclusion of land in the 
District, and that certain Facilities Agreement between the District and the City dated 
July 20, 2012, as amended. 
 
 SECTION 3.  That, if any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or portion 
of this Ordinance is for any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any court of 
competent jurisdiction, such shall be deemed a separate, distinct and independent 
provision, and such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions 
hereof. 
 

12-DA-001 CC1 Att 1b Exhibit B 



 SECTION 4.  That this Ordinance is intended as the sole and controlling 
ordinance of the City with respect to the granting of the written consent of the City to 
the addition of the Land in the District, and all ordinances or parts of ordinances in 
conflict with this Ordinance are hereby repealed. 
 
 SECTION 5.  That this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after 
its passage and approval. 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
LEANDER, TEXAS, this the _____ day of November, 2015. 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
 
______________, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
 
______________, City Secretary 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
 
______________, City Attorney 
 

12-DA-001 CC1 Att 1b Exhibit B 



EXHIBIT “A” 
 

(Legal Description of 18.598 Acres) 
 
 
 
 
 

12-DA-001 CC1 Att 1b Exhibit B 



GRAND MESA
AT CRYSTAL FALLS,

SEC 5

TRAVISSOSEC 1

FM 1431 RD

TRAVISSO PKWY

VENEZIA VW
BENETTON WAY

LONE MOUNTAIN PASS

PIANA PL
GOOD NIGHT TRL

ANGEL SIDE DR

AN
GE

L S
PR

IN
GS

 D
R

CASTELLA CV

ANGEL WING DR

BELLADOMA CV

PAVIA PASS

MO
NT

EL
LO

 C
T

VE
NET

O CIR
TRAVISSO PKWY

VENEZIA VW

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

± 0 1,000

Feet

Nameless Valley Ranch 
Facilities & Consent Agreement

Attachment #2
Location Exhibit

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits
Extra-Territorial Jurisdiction



AGENDA ITEM # 18 

 

 

 

Executive Summary 

December 3, 2015 

 

Council Agenda Subject:  An Ordinance Establishing a Child Safety Zone; Making It 
Unlawful for Persons Required to Register on the Texas Department of Public Safety’s 
Sex Offender Database Because of a Conviction against a Minor to Reside within a 
Specified Distance of Premises Where Children Gather 
  
Background:  The City Council held a workshop on a proposed child safety zone and 
residency restrictions for child sex offenders on November 5th and requested that an 
ordinance be brought back for the Council’s consideration.  The ordinance is based on a 
combination of the City of Cedar Park’s and the City of Lewisville’s ordinance.  
Specifically, the proposed ordinance includes three additional affirmative defenses not 
contained in the Cedar Park ordinance.  A Texas federal district court recently considered 
a lawsuit challenging the City of Lewisville’s child safety zone ordinance, and upheld the 
ordinance, and other non-Texas jurisdictions have upheld residency restrictions. Reasons 
for adopting child safety zones cited by cities include:  reducing the frequency of contact 
between sex offenders and children, the high recidivism rate among those who commit 
sex offenses against children, reducing temptation and opportunity to reoffend, and 
protecting the health and safety of children.  
 
Background material for this agenda item includes the proposed child safety zone 
ordinance.  Section 8.06.004(a) requests specific input from Council on the method of 
measuring the child safety zone. 
 
Origination:  Greg Minton, Chief of Police 
 
Financial Consideration:  N/A 
 
Recommendation:   N/A 
 
Attachments:   Proposed Child Safety Zone Ordinance 

 
Prepared by:  Debbie Haile, City Secretary 



ORDINANCE NO. _____________ 
 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS, 
ESTABLISHING A CHILD SAFETY ZONE; MAKING IT UNLAWFUL 
FOR PERSONS REQUIRED TO REGISTER ON THE TEXAS 
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY’S SEX OFFENDER DATABASE 
BECAUSE OF A CONVICTION AGAINST A MINOR TO RESIDE 
WITHIN 1,000 FEET OF PREMISES WHERE CHILDREN GATHER; 
MAKING IT UNLAWFUL TO PROVIDE A RESIDENCE TO CERTAIN 
PREDATOR SEX OFFENDERS IN PROHIBITED AREAS; PROVIDING 
AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSES; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; 
PROVIDING A PENALTY OF $500.00; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE AND OPEN MEETING CLAUSES; AND PROVIDING FOR 
RELATED MATTERS 

 
WHEREAS, studies have shown the recidivism rate for persons who commit sexual 

crimes against children is high;  

WHEREAS, it is reported that only a fraction of sexual crimes are reported to the police; 

WHEREAS, the protection of children from sexual offenses is of paramount importance 
to society as a whole;  

WHEREAS, victims of sex crimes can suffer long-term deleterious effects; 

WHEREAS, children have less ability than adults to protect themselves from sexual 
crimes; 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Leander, Texas (the “City”) finds that 
restricting the property available for residence of persons required to register on the Texas 
Department of Public Safety’s Sex Offender Database (the “Database”) because of one or more 
convictions involving a Minor will provide safeguards for children gathering in the City and is 
necessary for the protection of the public safety and welfare; and 

WHEREAS the City Council finds that the residency restrictions set forth in this 
Ordinance will help limit contact between database registrants and children, thereby reducing 
opportunities for recidivism and reducing the temptation to reoffend;  

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF LEANDER, TEXAS THAT: 

 Section 1. Adoption of Findings of Fact.  The findings and recitations set out in this 
ordinance are found to be true and correct and they are hereby adopted by the City Council and 
made a part hereof for all purposes as findings of fact.   
 



Section 2. Child Safety Zones Regulations.  Chapter 8 of the City Code of 
Ordinances is hereby amended by adding Article 8.06, entitled “Child Safety Zones”, to read as 
follows:   

ARTICLE 8.06.  CHILD SAFETY ZONES 

Sec. 8.06.001  Definitions.   

Day Care Center. A facility providing care, training, education, custody, treatment, or 
supervision for 13 or more children for less than 24 hours a day. 

 
Minor. A person under the age of 17. 

 
Park. A parcel of land, community park, neighborhood park, playground, swimming 
pool, indoor facility, outdoor facility, recreation center, field, athletic field, leased and/or 
owned by the City, and devoted to active or passive recreation, including any related 
facilities, parking lots and/or amenities, save and except any of the foregoing that has a 
stadium, arena and/or permanent seating and primarily used for sporting events, special 
events and/or other entertainment any of which is not managed by the City. 

 
Permanent Residence. A place where a person abides, lodges, or resides for 14 or more 
consecutive days. 

 
Premises Where Children Commonly Gather. Areas including all improved and 
unimproved areas on lots where the following are located or planned to be located: a 
public Park, private or public school (excluding in-home schools), semi-public swimming 
pools, Day Care Center, video arcade facility (as that term may be defined in Section 
481.134, Texas Health and Safety Code), or private recreational facility, including a  
Park, pool, playground, skate Park, or youth athletic field owned by a residential property 
owners association, or for which an entrance, admission, or rental fee is charged. 

 
Temporary Residence. A place where a person abides, lodges, or resides for a period of 
14 or more days in the aggregate during any calendar year and which is not the person’s 
permanent address, or a place where a person routinely abides, resides, or lodges for a 
period of four or more consecutive or nonconsecutive days in any month and which is not 
the person’s Permanent Residence. 

 
Child Sex Offender. A person who is required to register on the Texas Department of 
Public Safety’s Sex Offender Database (the “Database”) because of one or more 
convictions involving a Minor. 

 
Sec. 8.06.002  Offenses: Residency Requirements 

 
(a)     It shall be unlawful for a Child Sex Offender to establish a Permanent Residence or 
Temporary Residence within 1,000 feet of any Premises Where Children Commonly 
Gather. 

 



  
(b) It shall be unlawful to let or rent any place, structure or part thereof, manufactured 
home, trailer, or other conveyance, with the knowledge that it will be used as a 
Permanent Residence or Temporary Residence by any person prohibited from 
establishing such Permanent Residence or Temporary Residence pursuant to the terms of 
this Article, if such place, structure or part thereof, manufactured home, trailer, or other 
conveyance, is located within 1,000 feet of any Premises Where Children Commonly 
Gather. 

 
Sec. 8.06.003  Offenses: Halloween 

 
A Child Sex Offender shall not on each October 31st leave an exterior porch light on or 
otherwise invite trick-or-treaters to the premises. 

 
Sec. 8.06.004  Evidentiary matters; measurement 

 
(a)      For the purpose of determining the minimum distance of separation under this 
Article, the distance shall be measured by following a straight line from the [outer 
property line/nearest portion] of the structure of the Permanent or Temporary 
Residence to the nearest property line of the Premises Where Children Commonly 
Gather, as described hereinabove, or, in the case of multiple residences on one property, 
measuring from the [nearest property line of the premises/nearest portion of the 
multifamily structure] to the nearest property line of the Premises Where Children 
Commonly Gather, as described herein. 

 
(b)     A map depicting the prohibited areas shall be maintained by the City, and it shall 
be reviewed and updated not less than annually for changes. Said map will be available to 
the public on the City’s website. 

 
 (c)      Neither allegation nor evidence of a culpable mental state is required for the proof 
of an offense defined in this Article. 

 
Sec. 8.06.005  Affirmative Defenses 

 
The following shall be affirmative defenses to prosecution under this Article that any of 
the following conditions apply: 

 
(a)     It shall be an affirmative defense under Section 8.06.002 if the person required to 
register on the database established the Permanent or Temporary Residence and has 
complied with all of the Child Sex Offender registration laws of the State of Texas, prior 
to the date of the adoption of this Article, provided, however that if the person required to 
register on the database established the Permanent or Temporary Residence through a 
lease or other rental arrangement in effect on the effective date of this Ordinance, this 
affirmative defense shall not apply upon termination of the lease/rental arrangement that is 
in effect on the effective date of this Ordinance.  

  



(b)   It shall be an affirmative defense under Section 8.06.002 if the Premises Where 
Children Commonly Gather was designated, declared and/or determined after the Child 
Sex Offender established the Permanent or Temporary Residence and complied with all 
Child Sex Offender registration laws of the State of Texas provided, however, that if the 
person required to register on the database established the Permanent or Temporary 
Residence through a lease or other rental arrangement in effect on the effective date of this 
Ordinance, this affirmative defense shall not apply upon termination of the lease/rental 
arrangement that is in effect on the effective date of this Ordinance.  

 
(c)  It shall be an affirmative defense under Sections 8.06.002 and 8.06.003 if the 
information on the database is incorrect, and, if corrected, this Article would not apply to 
the person who was erroneously listed on the database. 
 
(d)  The person required to register on the database was a minor when he or she committed 
the offense requiring such registration and was not convicted as an adult. 
 
(e)    The person required to register on the database is a minor. 
 
(f)    The person was at the time of the violation subject to community services supervision 
pursuant to section 13B of article 42.12 of the Texas Code of Criminal Procedure, as 
amended, and the court reduced or waived the 1,000-foot restriction for a child free zone 
under section 13B(a)(1)(B) of article 42.12 of the Texas Code of Criminal Procedure, as 
amended, as it applies to the person's residence. 

 
Sec. 8.06.006 Penalty Provision 

 
Any person who violates the provisions of this Article shall be charged with a class C 
misdemeanor; and upon conviction shall be fined as provided a maximum of $500.00 for 
each day that a violation exists, and a separate offense shall be deemed committed upon 
each day during or on which a violation occurs or continues; provided that the penalty for 
a person’s second offense under this ordinance shall not be less than $200.00, and a 
penalty for a person’s third offense under this ordinance shall not be less than $400.00. 
 
Section 3.   Amendment of Conflicting Ordinances.  All ordinances or parts of 

ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are hereby amended to the extent of a conflict 
herewith.  In the event of a conflict between another ordinance of the City and this ordinance, 
this ordinance shall control. 

 Section 4.   Severability.  If any provision of this ordinance or the application of any 
provision to any person or circumstance is held invalid, the invalidity shall not affect other 
provisions or applications hereof which can be given effect without the invalid provision or 
application, and to this end the provisions of this ordinance are declared to be severable. 

Section 5.   Open Meetings.  That it is hereby officially found and determined that the 
meeting at which this ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public 



notice of the time, place and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open 
Meetings Act, Chapter 551, Loc. Gov't Code.   

  Section 6.   Effective Date.  This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and 
after its passage and approval. 

PASSED AND APPROVED on first reading this the ___ day of ___________, 20___. 

Attest:       The City of Leander, Texas   
          

____________________________   ____________________________ 
Debbie, Haile City Secretary    Christopher Fielder, Mayor 
 

 


	Agenda
	Item # 5
	Item # 6
	Item # 7
	Item # 8
	Item # 9
	Item # 10
	Item # 11
	Item # 12
	Item # 13
	Item # 14
	Item # 15
	Item # 16
	Item #17a
	Item #17b
	Item # 18



